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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Sharcholders of
Prubai fslamic Bank P.LE.C.
Dubai

United Arab Emirates

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dubai Islamic Bank PJ.8.C.
(the “Parent”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Bank™), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporfing Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated {inancial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or eror.

Auditor s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judpgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial staternents,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
io design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also inciodes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Cont’d...

Mamber of Dalcitte Tovche Tohmatsu Limited



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

(Apinion

I our opinton, the consalidated financial statements present fairly In all materiad respects, the financial
a } - p y 3 7

position of Dubai Islamic Bank P.J.5.C. and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 and its financial

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with histernational Financial

Reporting Standards.
- Report on other legal and regulatory requivements

Also, in our opinjon, proper books of account are maintained by the Parent, We have obtained all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit. According to
the information available to us, there were no contraventions during the year of the U.ALE. Federal
Commercial Companies Law No. (8) of 1984 (as amended), or the Articles of Associalion of the Parent
which might have a material effect on the financial position of the Parent or its financial performance.,

Delontte & Touche (MLE.)

Anis Sadek
Registration Number 521
29 January 2014



Brubai Islamic Bank PLILS.C. 3

Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 ecember 2013

3! Dacember 31 Pecember 1 Januery
1013 2012 2043
Mate AED'GRG ABD'G00 AECTO00
{Restawd) (Restated)
ASEETS
Cash and brlancey with eentra! banks 6 32,N2.064 15,473,580 12,952,679
Due from baviks asd financiy] institations 7 9,606,168 3,793 050 3,152,050
Tafamic financing ad Mvesting sssets, ol ] 56,070,638 35,182,088 51,117,618
Investments in Istamic suloek meosured ot
amattised com G 11,642,553 11,088,662 12,688,111
Other investieats st fair vahie 1o 2029,657 1,981,032 2,053,133
investments in associates and joint ventures It 171820 2,029,033 1,148,928
Properties held for sale 12 1,840,913 1,997,374 1,558,655
Investment propetties 12 23,3514 2,083,010 1,918,520
Receivables rod other assets i4 4,957,374 4,801,948 5,085 868
Property, plant and squipment 15 536,968 389479 615,120
Total assete 113,258,438 98,611,212 93,944,700
P = TR A Sy
LIABILITIES AND EQUETY
LIAMILITIES
Customers' deposits 17 79,060,541 66,715,523 64,771,308
Due ter banks and fnancial institutions 1) 2,630,088 6,668,000 4.597,981
Sukuk financing insiroments 19 2,207,603 4,673 960 4,173,083
Medium, (erm wakalg finence 0 - 3,752,543 3,752,543
Payables and other ahilities 21 12,142,511 4,834,700 4,265,381
f.2ket pryable 23 165,588 163,572 121,078
Yoinl Hnbilities 96,946,240 56,018,298 82,662,362
EQUITY
Shure capital 24 3,953,751 3,797,034 3,797,054
Tier 1 sukuk 25 3,673,000 - -
Other reservea and (reasury shoreg 26 5,495,696 5,348,564 3.348,964
Investmaents fair value reserve 21 (563,850 K173 (829,632)
Exchange trarislation wuectve 28 (256,833) {192,100) {122,830)
Ratsined carnings 2,013,521 951,716 441,098
Hauity attribatable to awners of the Parent 14,201,685 0,087,781 B.634,654
Mon-conwoiling interasts 16(e} 2,050,504 2,605,133 2,647,684
Tatal equily 16,342,189 11,692,414 i 1,282,338
Totul linhiifies and cquity 113,288 438 98,611,212 'ﬂ o4, 'NJB
H. ¥. Mohammag mﬁm DBr. Tarig Homaid Al Taver
Imrrmmr Yice Chairman
, { \W'@\w "
il Y i
Abdulin AL AT Hamli D, Adnan Chilwan
Managing Director Chief [Execurive Cifficer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements,



Dubai Islamic Bank P.JS.C.

Consolidated income statement
for the vear ended 31 December 2013

INCOMEI

Tncome from Jstamic finaneing and investing asgets

Income from investments in Islantic sukuk

Income from International murababat and walkala, short term
Gain from other investrments at falr value, net

Commissions, fees and foreign exchange income

Income fram investment properties

income from properties held for sale, net

Other income

Total incotme

EXPENSES

Personnel expenses

CGeneral and administrative expenses

Depreciation of investment properties

Depreciation of property, plant and equipraent

Impairment loss on financial assets, net

Reversal of impairment/{impairment loss) on non-financial assets, net

Total expenses
Operating profit before depositors® and sukuk holders’

share of profit, share of profit from associates and joint
ventures and income tax

Depositors” and sulnk holders® share of profit
Opevating profit for the year
Share of profit from associates and joint ventures
Profit for the year before income fax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the Parent

MNon-controfling inerests

Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share (ALD per share)

MNote

38
39

15
40
41

ol
12

43

2013
AED000

3,348,430
585,582
95,674
21,966
798,854
61,198
233,164
65,528

5,210,393

(1,051,159)
(502,356)
(36,198)
(98,864)
(920,062)
98,944

(2,512,695)

2,697,698
(1,053,831)

E,643,867
78,077

1,721,944

{3915)

1,718,028

s s LT

1.610,939
167,090

1,718,029

AED 0.38

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

082
ATD' 000
{Restated)

3,266,390
621,463
38,137
22,483
780,014
90,293
217,392
F4,814

5,231,010

(966,263}
(518,436)

(31,338)
(103,835)
(972.633)
(120,624}

(2,713,12%)

2,517 887
{1,352,4949)

1,165,388
60,857

1,226,243

{12,801)

1,213,444

T i st sy

1,130,072
63,372

1,213 444

AED .30

LD A L SRl



Dubai Islantic Bank PES.C.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) items

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

Trems that will not be reclassified subsequenily 1o profit or loss,

Fair value gain on other investments carried at FVTOCH, net
Directors’ rerpuneration
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Artributable 1o
Owners of the Parent

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

2013
AED'000

1,718,029

(88,733)

275,437
(5,350}

181,354

1,899,383

j i v s o

1,777,119
122,264

1,899,383

L) 3

2012
AED 000
{Restated)

1,213,444

(66,639}

12,276
(5.350)

(59,71?)"

1,153,731

1,087,171
66,560
1,133,731
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Dubai Islamic Bank P.JS.C

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
AED 000 AED'000
{Raegtuted)
Cash tlows from operafing activities
Prafit for the year before income tax expense 1,721,044 1,226,245
Adjustments for:
Impairment loss on financial assets, net 920,062 872,633
(Reversal of impairment)impairment loss on non-financial assets, net {95,044) 120,624
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 98,564 103,835
Depreciation of investment properiies 36,198 31,338
Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits 212,945 23,747
Gain on disposai of investment in lsiamic sulak (67,131 (37.058)
Dividend income (20,274 (21,033)
Share of profit from associates and joint ventures (78,077 (60,857}
(hain on disposal of properties held for sale (122,217) {23,434}
Loss/(gain) on disposal of investment in assacistes and joint ventures 53,636 {4,790
Amortisation of sukuk instruments issued by a subsidiary - 5,057
Gain on disposal of subsidiadies (27,679 {3,375
Write off of property plant and equipment 4 259
Revaluation of investments at fair value through profit or loss (1%) a4
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipmen 7,289 {351}
Gain on disposal of investments at fair value through profit or loss (1,677) {(1,514)
Operating cash flow before changes in operating assets and Habilities 2,447,973 2,332,289
Ner movement in deposits and International murabalat with
original maturities above three months {6,731,028) (1,867,064)
Increase in Islamic financing and investing assels (1,896,361) {4,995 438)
{Increase)/decrease in receivables and other assets {138,660} 32,658
Increase in customers’ deposits 12,569,190 2,007,844
{Decrease)/increase in due to banks and financial institutions (4,026,953 2,335,791
Increase/{decrease) in payables and other liabilities 7.354,339 (384,677
Cush penerated by/(used in) cperating activities 9,577,500 (518,617
Employees” end-of-gervice benefits paid (561) (829}
Tax paid (6,294 (5,652)
Net cash generated byf{used in) operating activities 9,570,645 (525,100

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Bubai Islamie Bank P.JIS.C.

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

Cash flows from invesfing activities

Purchase of investments in Istamic sukuk

Proceeds from dispesal of investments in Islamic sukuk
Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVTPL
Purchase of investments carried at FVTOC!

Dividend received

Additions to properties held for sale

Progeeds from disposal of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of properties held for sale
Additions to associates and joint ventures

Additions to investment properties

Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of asscciates and joint ventures
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash generated by nvesting activities

Cash flows from linancing activities

Dividends paid

Zakat paid during the year

Tier 1 sukuk tssued during the year

Sukuk financing instrument issued during the year
Sukuk financing instrument redeemed during the year
Sukuk financing instrument issuance cost

Settlement of medium term wakala finance

Cost of additional shares tssued to non-controlling interests
Treasury shares purchased

Tier | sukuk holders’ share of profit paid during the year

Net cash nsed in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in

foretgn currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (Note 44)

2013 2012
AED 080 AED'000
(Restated)
(2,834,425} (2,235,776)
2,207,919 3,830,583
181,164 80,341
(25,397} {4,391)
43,559 32,386
{107,165} (166,070)
26,565 27,341
527,438 292,076
(24,638) (6.665)
(16,223} (124,920}
(70,350} (80,580}
136,717 29,109
11,922 1,039
57,086 1,674,273
(594,621) (499,202)
(163,572) (118,639
3,673,0“0 -
- 2,851,005
(1,866,357) (2,357,075}
(29,273) -
(3,732,543) -
(667) -
(1,739) -
(114,781) -
{2,850,573) (123,821)
6,777,158 1,025,352
16,548,086 9,578,719
43,588 {55,985}
17,369,132

10,548,086

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.



Dubai Fslamic Bank PILS.C. 9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

i General information

Dubai Isiamic Bank (Public Joint Stack Company) (the “Parent™) was incorporated by an Amiri Decree
issued on 29 Safar 1395 Hijri, corresponding to 12 March 1975 by His Highness, the Ruler of Dubai, to
provide bhanking and related services based on [slamic Sharia’a principles. It was subsequently registered
under the Commercial Companies Law number 8 of 1984 (as amended) as a Public Joint Stock Company.

The accompanving consolidated financial siatements combine the activities of the Parent and its
subsidiaries (note 16) (together referred to as the “Bank™).

The Bank’s entitics provide various types of retail and corporate basking services, and investment
banking services in primarily the U.AE. The principal activities of the Bank’s entities are described in
note 16 to these consolidated financial statements.

The registered head office of the Parent is at P.O. Box 1080, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

(a) New and revised IFRSs affecting the amounts reported ov/and disclosures in the
consolidated Gnancial statements

In the current vear, the Bank has applied a number of new and revised IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) that are mandatory effective for an accounting period that begins on
or after | January 2013,

i New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In May 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
was issued comprising [FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, JFRS |1 Joint Arrangements, [FRS
12 Disclosure of hiterests in Other Entities, JAS 27 {as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements
and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011} Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Subsequent 1o the issue of
these standards, amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and 1FRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the first-time application of the standards.

In the current year, the Bank has applied for the first time {FRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 (as
revised 2011) together with the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 regarding the transitional
guidance, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Bank as it deals only with separate financial
siatements,

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below,
(1y  Impact of the application of IFRS 10 Consolidated Finoneial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Finoncial Statements and SIC 12
Comsolidation » Special Purpose Enrities that deal with consolidated financial statements. Based on new
requirements of IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation. which is control. In addition, IFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, () exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (¢} the ability to use its power
over the investee o affect the amount of the investor's returns. All three of these criteria must be met for
an investor to have control over an investee, Extensive guidance has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with
complex scenarios,



Bubai Islamic Bank P.J.S.C. 16

Motes o the consolidated financial statentents
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised Internntional Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRSs)
{continued)

{a) New and revised IFRSs affecting the amoumts reported or/and  disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

i New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
{coitinued)

{1} Impact of the application of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Stetements (continued)

In hght of the new definitions and guidance of IFRS 10, the management has reassessed the control for its
investees. As a consequence, the management has concluded that it has had control over its investment in

the following:

Proportion and
Phace of ownership interest and
incorporation  voting power held by

Name of subsidiary Principal activity and operation the Bank
2013 2012
DPevaar Development PJ.5.C. Real estate development UAE. 44.9% 44.9%
{("“Deyaar™)

The Bank applied acquisition accounting to the investment in Deyaar at 1 July 2010, as if Deyaar hac
been consolidated from that date,

Although the Bank owns less than 50% of Deyaar, the management has determined that the Bank has de-
facto control over Devaar bocause it is exposed to significant variable retumns from its involvement with
Deyaar and has power and rights to affect the amount of its returns. In prior years, the investment i
Deyaar was treated a3 an associate and accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Comparative amounts for 2012 and the related amounts as at 1 January 2012 have been restated in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions set out in IFRS 10,

As at | July 2010, the fair value of net identifiable assets was as follows:

1 July

2010

AEDOO0

Fair value of net identifiabie assets 5,007.786
The Bank’s share of the fair value of net identilable assety 2,286,357
The Bank’s investment carrying amount (2,788,743)

Net impact ont the Bank's retained earnings (502,386



Dubai [slamic Bank P.1LS.C. 11

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2 Application of new and revised Interuational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
{continued)

{a) New and revised IFRSs affecting the amounts reported ov/and disclosures in the
consclidated financial statements (continued)

i New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
{continned)

{2y Impact of the application of IFRS 1 Joinl Arrangements

IFRS 1lreplace 1AS 31 Interests in Joint Vertures and the guidance contatned in a relating interpretation
SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-mionetary Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 deals with how a
joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control should be classified and accounted for.
Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under 1AS 31, there are three types
of joint arrangements: jointly conirolled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlied
operations. In addition, joint ventures under {FRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controiled entities under JIAS 31 can be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting or proportionate accounting.

The application of IFRS 11 and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) resulted in changes in the accounting of the
Bank’s jointly controtled entities that were previously accounted for using the proportionate consolidation
method. As per the new requirements, alt jointly controlled entities were deconsolidated and accounted
for using the equity method of accounting,

The impact of the adeption of the abovementioned new and revised standards on the comparative
amounts is disclosed in note 53 1o these consolidated financial statements.

it IFRS 12 Disclosure of Inferests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable o entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of IFRS 12
has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements (please see notes 11
and 16 to these consolidated financial statements).

B IFRS 13 Fair Falve Measurements

The Bank has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current vear. TFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS
13 is broed, the fair value measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items
and non-financial mstrument tems for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS17 Leayses
and Measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value {e.g. value in use for
impairment assessment purposes).

{FRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a hability
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS 13 i3 an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuaiion technique. Also IFRS 13 includes extensive
disclosure requirements.

Other than additional disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2 Applicstion of new and revised ¥nternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
{eantinued)

{a) New and revised IFRSs affecting the amounts reported or/and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements (confinned)

v Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentarion of Finencial Statements - statement of comprehensive income
items

The amendments require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories in the
other comprehensive income section: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. The
amendments have been applied retrogpectively, and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the changes, Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to IAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive imcome.

v Amendments to 1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements - comparative amounts

The annual improvements to [FRSs 2009-2011 have made a number of amendments to [FRSs. The
amendments that are relevant to the Bank are the amendments to IAS 1 regarding when a statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of financial position} and
the related notes are required to be presented. The amendments specify that a third statement of financial
position is required when (i) am entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in its financial statements, and (i1) the retrospective
application, restatement or reclassification has a material effect on the information in the third statement
of financial position. The amendments specify that related notes are not required to accompany the third
staterment of financial position.

In the current vear, the Bank has applied a number of new and revised IFRSs (see above) which has
resulted in material effects on the financial information in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 1 January 2012, In accordance with the amendments to IAS 1, the Bank has presented a third
statement of financial position as at | January 2012 without the related notes.

(bh) New and revised YFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements

The following revised [FRSs have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The
application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the
current and prior periods but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arTangements,

o Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Istruments: Disclosure - Enbancing Disclosures about
Offserting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,

o Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments -« Including new general hedge accounting model.

@ Amendments to LAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment,

e IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits - Changes the accounting for defined benefit plans
and termination benefits.

e Amendments to 1AS 32 Financial Instruments - Presentation - Tax effect of distribution to holders
of eguity instruments.

o IFIRC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

2 Application of new and revised Interuational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
{continned)

(¢) New and revised standards in issue but not vet effective

The Bank has not applied the following new and revised standards that have been issued but are not yet

effective;

Effective for annuzal periods

New and revised ITRSs beginning on or after
o Amendments to IFRS 10 Conselidwed Financial Statewmients - 1 Japuary 2014

Amendments for investment entities

e Amendments to TFRS 12 Discloswre of interests in Other Entities - 1 January 2014
Amendments for investment entities

¢ Amendments 1o 1AS 27 Separate Finemeial Sitements fas amended 1 January 2014
in 2011} - Amendments for investment entities

o Amendments fo IAS 32 Financial instruments. Presentation - 1lJanuary 2014
Amendments relating to the offsetting of assets and labilities

¢ Amendments to IAS 36 Jmpairment of Assels - Amendments arising 1 Janvary 2014
from Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Asset

+ Amendments to AS 3% Financial Instruments: Recognition ond 1 January 2014
Measuwrement - Amendments for novation of derivatives

¢ [FRIC 21 Levies 1 January 2014

As of date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements, management are still in the process of
evaluating the impact of these new and revised standards on the consolidated financial statements,

3 Definitions
The following terms are used in the consolidated financial statements with the meaning specified:

(a) Mourabaha

A contract whereby the Bank (the “Seller™) sells an asset to its customer (the “Purchaser’™), on a deferred
payment basis, after purchasing the asset and gaining possession thereof and title thereto, where the Seller
has purchased and acquired that asset, based on a promise received from the Purchaser to buy the asset
once purchased according to specific Murabaha terms and conditions, The Murabaha sale price comprises
the cost of the asset and a pre-agreed profit amount. Murabaha profit is internally accounted for on a time-
apportioned basis over the period of the contract based on the principal amount outstanding., The
Murabaha sale price is paid by the Purchaser to the Seller on an installment basis over the period of the
Murabaha as stated in the contract.

(b)Y Salam fnance

A contract whereby the Bank purchases a fixed quantity of a specified commodity and pays the full Salam
price of the commodity in advance, whereas the customer delivers the guantity of the commodities in
accordance with an agreed delivery schedule, The Bank makes profit on Salam transactions, when the
Salam commodities are received from the Salam customer and subsequently sold to a third party at profit,
Salam profit is internally accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the Salam contract
based on the value of the outstanding Salam commodities.



Dabai Islamic Bank P.J4.5.C. 14

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 20613 (continued)

3 Definitions (continned)
(¢) Istisma’a

A sale confract hetween two parties whereby the Bank (the “Sani™ or “Seller™) undertakes to construct,
for its customer (the “Mustasni™ or “Purchasger™), a specific asset or property (being “Al-Masnog™)
according to certain pre-agreed specifications to be delivered during a pre-agreed period of time in
consideration of a pre-determined price, which comprises the cost of construction and a profit amount.
The work undertaken is not restricted 1o be accomplished by the Sani’ alone and the whole or part of the
construction/development can be undertaken by third parties under the control and responsibility of the
Sani’. Under an Istisna’a contract the Bank could be the Sani® or the Mustasni’. Istisna’a profit {difference
between the sale price of Al-Masnoo to the customer and the Bank's total Istisna’a cost) is internally
accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the contract based on the principal amount

cutstanding,

{d} Ijarah
i ljarah Muntahiys Biltamleek

An agreement whereby the Bank (the “Lessor™) leases an asset to ifs customer (ihe “lessee™) (after
purchasing/acquiring the specified asset, either from a third party seller or from the customer itself,
according to the customer’s request and based on his promise to lease), against certain rental payments for
specific lease term/periods, payable on fixed or variable rental basis.

The [jarah agreement specifies the leased asset, duration of the lease term, as well as, the basis for rental
caleulation and the timing of rental payment. The Lessee undertakes under this agreement (o renew the
lease periods and pay the relevant rental payment amounts as per the agreed schedule and applicable
formula throughout the lease term,

The Lessor retains the ownership of the asset throughout the lease term. At the end of the lease term, upon
fulfillment of alf the obligations by the l.essee under the Harah agreement, the Lessor will sell the leased
asset to the Lessee at nominal value based on a sale undertaking given by the Lessor.

ljarah rentals acerue upon the commencement of the lease and continues throughout the lease term based
on the outstanding fixed rental (which predominantly represent the cost of the leased asset).

ii Forward Ijarah

Forward Yarah (ljarsh Mauscofa Fiz Zimma) is an agreement whereby the Bank (the “Lessor’) agrees 1o
provide, on a specified future date, a certain described asset on lease to its customer {the “Lessee™) upon
its completion and delivery by the developer, contractor or customer, from whom the Bank has purchased
the same, by way of Istisna,

The Forward ljarzh agreement specifies the description of the leased asset, duration of the lease term, and
the basis for rental calculation and the timing of rental payment.

During the construction period, the Bank pays to the developer/contractor one payment or multiple
payments, Forward larah profit during the construction period will be accounted for on & time-
apportioned basis over the construction period on account of rentals, These profit amounts are received
¢ither during the construction period as advance rental payment or with the first or second rental payment
after the commencement of the lease,

The lease rental under Forward ljarah commences only upon the Lessee having received possession of the
leased asset from the Lessor., The Lessee underiakes under the Forward Harah agreement {0 renew the
lease periods and pay the relevant rental payment amounts as per the apreed schedule and applicable
formula throughout the lease term.

The Lessor retains the ownership of the asset throughout the lease term. At the end of the lease term, upon
fulfiflment of all the obligations by the Lessee under the Forward Harah agreement, the Lessor will sell
the leased asset to the Lessee at nominal value based on a sale undertaking given by the Lessor.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

3 Pefinitions (continued)

(&) Musharaka

An agreement between the Bank and its customer, whereby both parties contribute towards the capital of
the Musharaka (the “Musharaka Capital™). The Musharaka Capital may be contributed in cash or in kind,
as valued at the time of entering into the Musharaka, The subject of the Musharaka may be a certain
investment enterprise, whether existing or new, or the ownership of a certain property either permanently
or according to a diminishing arrangement ending up with the acquisition by the customer of the full
ownership. The profit is shared according to 2 pre-agreed profit distribution ratio as stipulated under the
Musharaka agreement. In principle Musharaka profit is distributed on declaration/distribution by the
managing partner. However, since the Musharaka profit is always rehiably estimated, it is internally
accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the Musharaka tenure based on the Musharaka Capital
outstanding. Whereas the loss, if any, is shared in proportion to their capital contribution ratios, provided
in the ahsence of the managing partner’s negligence, breach or default, the Group receives satisfactory
evidence that such loss was due to force majeure and that the managing partner neither was able to predict
the same nor could have prevented the negative consequences of the same on the Musharaka,

(N Mauadariba

A contract between two parties whereby one party is a fund provider (the “Rab Al Mal”) who would
provide a certain amount of funds (the “Mudaraba Capital™), to the other party (the “Mudarib™). Mudarib
would then invest the Mudaraba Capital in a specific enterprise or activity deploying its experience and
expertise for a specific pre-agreed share in the resultant profit, if any. The Rab Al Mal is not involved in
the management of the Mudaraba activity. In principle Mudaraba profit is distributed on
declaration/distribution by the Mudarib. However, since the Mudaraba profit is always reliably estimated
it is internally accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the Mudaraba tenure based on the
Mudaraba Capital outstanding, The Mudarib would bear the loss in case of its default, negligence or
violation of any of the terms and conditions of the Mudaraba contract; otherwise the loss would be borne
by the Rab Al Mal, provided the Rab Al Mal receives satisfactory evidence that such loss was due 10
force majeure and that the Mudarib neither was able to predict the same nor could have prevented the
npegative consequences of the same on the Mudaraba. Under the Mudaraba contract the Bank may act
either as Mudartb or as Rab Al Mal, as the case may be.

(g) Waknala

An agreement between two parties whereby one party is a fund provider (the “Muwakkil”) who provides
a certain amount of money (the “Wakala Capital”) to an agent (the “Wakeel”), who invests the Wakala
Capital in a Sharia’a compliant manner and according to the feasibility study/investment plan submitted
to the Muwakkil by the Wakeel. The Wakeel is entitled to a fixed fee (the “Wakala Fee™) as a lump sum
antount or a percentage of the Wakala Capital, The Wakeel may be granted any excess over and above a
certain pre-agreed rate of return as s performance incentive. In principle Wakala profit is distributed on
declaration/distribution by the Wakeel. However, since the Wakala profit is always reliably estimated it is
internally accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the Wakala tenure based on the Wakala Capital
putstanding, The Wakeel would bear the loss in case of its default, negligence or violation of any of the
terms and conditions of the Wakala Agreement; otherwise the loss would be borne by the Muwakkil,
provided the Muwakkil receives satisfactory evidence that such loss was due to force majeure and that the
Wakeel neither was able to predict the same nor could have prevenied the negative consequences of the
same on the Wakala. Under the Wakala agreement the Bank may act either as Muwakkil or as Wakeel, as
the case may be.

(h) Sukuk

These comprise asset backed, Sharia’a compliant trust certificates.
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for the year ended 31 Becember 2013 {(continued)

3 Befinitions (continued)

(i) Amanats accounts

The Bank acts as a trustee agent for clients escrow accounts for a fixed fee,
4 Significant accounting policies

(r) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (JFRSs) and applcable requiremnents of the Laws of the ULAE.

{b) Basis of preparvation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below,

Historical cost is generally based on the famr value of the consideration given in exchange for assets,
goods and services,

Fair value i5 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or & lability, the Bank takes into account when pricing the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements 15
determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value such as value in use in IAS 36,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair valle measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Hahilities
that the emtity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other that quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or lability either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The consolidated financial staternents are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (AED) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands dirham, except when otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(¢)  Presentation of consolidated financial statements

The Bank presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An
analysis regarding recovery or setthement within 12 months alter the reporting date {current) and more

than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in note 48 to these consolidated
financial statements,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the {inancial statements of the Bank and entities
controlted by the Bank. Control is achieved when the Bank has;

] power over the investee,
M exposure, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
u the ability to use its power over the investee 1o alfect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,

When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical abality to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Bank considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Bank’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

» the size of the Bank’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

" potential voting rights held by the Bank, other vote holders and other parties;

u rights raising from ather contractual arrangements; and

# any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Bank has, or does not bave, the curent
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns and previous sharcholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, ncome and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
digposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the date the Bank
gains control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributable to the owners of the
Parent and to the non-controlling interests, Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributable
to the owners of the parent and to the non-controtling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having & deticit balance,

When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of subsidiavies to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Bank’s sccounting policies.

All intragroup assets, habilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Bank are eliminated in full on conselidation,

Changes in the Bank's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Bank losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Bank’s
interests and the non-comrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controbling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid/payable or received/receivable is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Parent,

When the Bank loses control of a subsidiary, a pain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement and s calculated as the difference between (1) the agoregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained intevest, and (ii} the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilitles of the subsidiary, and any non-controlling interests, All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Bank had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitied by applicable IFRSs).
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Notes to the consolidated financinl statements
for the yvear ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)  Basis of consolidation (continued)

The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recoganition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture,

() Fiduciary activities

The Bank acts as trustee/manager and in other capacities that result in holding or placing of assets in a
fiduciary capacity on behalf of trusts or other institutions, Such assets and income arising thereon are not
included in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements as they are not assets of the Bank. However,
where the Bank provides Amanat accounts and acts as an agent for fixed fee to hold funds in escrow
aceounts, these are treated as other liabilities.

() Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Bank has significent influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or juint
control over those policies.

A joint veniure is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control,

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in
associates and joint ventures is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereatter to recognise the Bank’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates and joint ventures. When the Bank’s share of losses of associates and joint
ventures exceeds the Bank’s interest in that associates and joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Bank’s net investment in the associates and joint ventures),
the Bank discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
gxtent that the Bank has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
assoctates and joint ventures.

An investment in associate as a joint ventuwre is accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or joint venture, On acquisition of the investment in an associate
ar & joint venture, any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Bank’'s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of associates and joint ventures recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Bank’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the vost of acquisition, after resssessment, is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards are applied to detenmine whether it {s
pecessary to recognise any impairient loss with respect to the Bank's investment in associates and joint
ventures, When necessary, the entire carryving amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with [AS 36 [mpairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with 1AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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for the vear ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
() Fuvestmenis in associates and joint ventures (continued}

The Bank discontinues the use of equity method from the date when the investment ceases 10 be an
associate or a joint veniure. When the Bank retains its interest in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Bank mieasures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of 4 part interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
assaciate or joint venture. In addition, the Bank accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or lHabilities, the Bank reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
toss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Bank continues {0 use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

Upon disposal of associates and joint ventures that results in the Bank losing significant influence over
that associates and joint ventures, any retained investment is measured at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with IFRS 9.
The difference between the previous carrying amount of the associates and joint ventures attributable to
the retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associates and joint ventures. In addition, the Bank accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associates and joint ventures on the same basis as would
be required if thal associates and joint ventures had directly disposed of the related assets or lisbilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associates and
joint ventures would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Bauk reclassifies the gain or loss from equity fo profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it
foses significant influence over that associates and joint ventures,

When a Bank’s entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Bank, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joinf venture is recognised in the Bank’ consolidated
financial statements only 1o the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Bank.

(g} Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when a Bank’s entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and Habilities are initially measured at fatr value, Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs dirvectly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial Habilities at tair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement,
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{h) Financial assets

Al regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the 1ime frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

i Classification of financial assets

‘Balances with central banks’, ‘dee from banks and financial institutions’, ‘Islamic financing and
investing assets’, ‘investments in Islamic sukuk® and certain items in ‘receivables and other assets’ that
meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss and
deferred income, if any {(except for those assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
on mitial recogniiion}:

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows: and
»  the contracival terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principat and profit on the principal amount outstanding,

All other financial assels are subsequently measured af fair value.
ii Amortized cost and effective profit rate method

The effective profit method is & method of caleulating the amortised cost of those financial instruments
measured at amortized cost and of allocating income over the relevant period, The effective profit rate is
the rate that 15 used to calculate the present value of the estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective profit rate, iransaction costs aund
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financing and investing instruments, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to ayrive at the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective profit basis for financing and investing instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Income is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

iii  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOQCT)

On initial recognition, the Bank can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI, Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if
the equity investment is held for rrading.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

» it has been acguired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

«  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{h) Financial assets (continued)
ili ~ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (continued)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCT are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve in
equity. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investrents,

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Bank's
right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with 1AS 18 Revenue, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends sarned are recognised in the
consolidated income statement and are included in the ‘gain from other investments at fair value’ line
itent,

iv. Financial assefs at fair vabie theough profit or loss (FVEPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Bank designates an investment
that is not held for trading as at fair valie through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH) on initial
recognition (see above),

Financial assets (other than equity instruments) that do not meet the amortised cost criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL, In addition, financial assets (other than equity instruments) that meet the amortised
cost criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL, Financial assets (other than equity
instruments) may be designated as at FYTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
sighificantly reduces a2 measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains snd losses on them on different bases. The Bank has not designated
any financial assets (other than equity instruments) as at FVTPL,

Financial assets are reclassified from amortised cost 1o FVTPL when the business model is changed such
that the amortised cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of financial assets (other than equity
instruments) that are designated as at FVTPL on inttial vecognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains
or josses arising on remeasurement recognised in the consolidated income statement. The net gain or logs
recognised in the consolidated income statement i¢ included in the ‘gain from other investiments at fair
value’ line item in the consolidated income statement. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 50 to these consolidated financial statements.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Bank’s right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with 1AS 18
Revenuwe and 15 included in the consolidated income statement as disclosed above.
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4  BSignificant accounting policies (continned)
(1) Financial assets (continned)
¥ Foreign exchange gains and losses

The Tair value of financial assets denominated in a foreizn curency is determined in that foreign currency
and transiated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. The foreign exchange component forms
part of its fair value gain or loss, Therefore,

» for financial assects that are classified as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component is recognised in
consolidated income statement: and

« for financial assets that designated as at FVTOC!, any foreign exchange component is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

For foreign currency denominated financial instruments measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
financial assets and are recognised in the consolidated income statement,

vi  Empsivment of financial assets

Financial assets (including Tslamic financing and investing assefls, invesiments in Tslamic sukuk, balances
due from banks and financial institutions, balances with central banks and other assets) that are measured
at amortised cost are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
measured at amortized cost are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that cccurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future
cash flows of the agset have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairnment could include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

= breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in profit or principal payments;

« it becoming probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
+  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows reflecting the amount of collateral and puarantee,
caleulated vsing the financial asset’s original effective profit rate.

The carryving amount of the financial asset measured at amortized cost is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of Islamic financing and investing assets, where the
carrying amount s reduced through the use of an impanment allowance account, When the Islamic
financing and investing assets are considered uncollectible, it is written off against the impairment
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
impaimoent allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the impaivment allowance account are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decreass can be related
objectively to an event occurring afier the impairment was recognised, the previously recopnised
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated income statement 1o the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impaiment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Islamic financing and investing assets (and the related impairment allowance) is normally written off,
gither partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recavery of the principal amount and, for a
collateratised Islamic financing and investing assets, when the proceeds from realizing the security have
been received,
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4 Significant acconniing policies (continued)
(h} Financisl assets (continued)
vi  Impairment of finapeial assets (continued)

Impairment of Islamic financing and investing assets measured at amortized cost is assessed by the Bank
as follows:

{1) Individually assessed Fslamic Bnancing and investing assets

Individually assessed lslamic financing and investing assets mainly represent corporate and commercial
assets which are assessed individually in order to determine whether there exists any objective evidence
that an Tslamic financing and investing aszet is impaired. Islamic financing and investing assets are
classified as impaired as soon as there is doubt about the customer’s ability to meet payment obligations
to the Bank in accordance with the original contractual terms. Doubts about the customer’s ability 1o meet
payment obligations genevally arise when:

= Principal and profit are not serviced as per contractual terms; and

«  When there is significant deterioration in the customer’s financial condition and the amount expected
to be realised from disposals of collaterals, if any, are not likely to cover the present carrying value of
the Tslamic financing and investing assets.

{mpaired Islamic financing and investing assets are measured on the bagis of the present value of expected
future cash flows caleulated using Islamic financing and investing asset’s original effective profit rate or,
as a practical expedient, at the Islamic financing and investing assets’ observable market price or fair
value of the collaterals if the Islamic financing and investing assets is collateral dependent. Impairment
toss is caleulated as the difference between the Islamic financing and investing assets” carrying value and
its present impaired value,

(2} Retail Islamic financing and investing assets with common features and which are not
individually significant

Collective impairment is made 1o cover impairnment against specific group of assets where there s a
measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows by applying a formula approach which allocates
progressively higher loss rates in line with the overdue installment date.

(3} Incurred but not yel identified

Individually assessed Islamic financing and investing assets for which no evidence of loss has been
specifically identified on an individual basis are grouped together according to their credit risk
characteristics based on industry, product or Islamic financing and investing assets rating for the purpose
of caleulating an estimated collective loss. This reflects impairment losses that the Bank may have
incurred as a result of events occurring before the consolidated financial position date, which the Bank s
not able to identify on an individual basis, and that can be reliably estimated. As soon as information
becomes available which dentifies losses on individual Islamic financing and investing assets within the
grovp of the costomer, those Islamic financing and investing assets are removed from the group of the
customer and assessed on an individual basis for impatrment.
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4 Significant acconnting policies (continued)
(h) Financial assets (continned)

vi  Impairment of insncial sssets (continued)
(4) Renegotiated financing facilities

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure financing exposures rather than to take possession of
coltateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the apreement of new financing
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, the financing exposure is no longer considered past
dug, Management continuously reviews renegotiated facilities to ensure that all criteria are met and that
future payments are likely to cccur. The facility continues to be subject fo an individual or collective
impairment assessment, caleulated using the facility’™s original effective profit rate depending upon the
customer complying with the revised terms and conditions and base upon performance criteria of the
exposure such as minimum payment requirements and improvement in quality and effectiveness of
collateral, to be moved to performing category.

vii Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity, If the Bank neither fransfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and conthtues 1o control the transferred asset, the Bank recognises I8 retaingd interest in the
asset and an associated lability for amounts it may have to pay. It the Bank retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Bank continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised Islamic financing {or the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the
consolidated income statement,

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCL, the cumulative gain or loss previously

sccumulated in the investments revaluation reserve in equity is not reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, but s transferred to retained earmings within equity.

(iy Financial abilities and equity instruments

i Classification s Hability or equity

Liability and equity instruments issued by the Bank are classified as either financial habilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial Kability
and an equity instrument.

ii Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Own equity instrumients of the parent which are acquired by it or by any of its subsidiaries (treasury
shares) are recognised and deducted divectly in equity. No gain or loss 15 recognised in the consolidated
income statement ou the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Parent’s own equity instruments,



[+2
in

Prubai Islamic Bank P.J.5.C.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

4 Bignificant accounting policies (continued)
(iy Financial labilities and cquity instraments (continued)

it Equity instruments {continged)

Tier 1 sukuk are perpetual Mudaraba sukulk which are not redeemable by sukukholders and bear an
entitlement to profit distributions that is non-cumulative and at the discretion of the board of directors.
Accordingly tier 1 sukuk are presented as a component of equity instruments issued by the Bank in

equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and profit distribution to tier 1 sukuk are recognised as a liability and
deducted from equity when they are approved by the Bank’s sharcholders and board of directors,
respectively, Dividends for the year that are approved sfter the reporting date are disclosed as an
unadjusting event after the reporting date.

iit Financial iabilities

Al financial Habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective profit rate method
or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a wansfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantees issued by the
Bank, and commitments issued by the Bank to provide a facility at below-market profit rate are measured
in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below,

(1) Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequentty measured at amortised cost are determined hased on the effective profit rate method.
Customers’ share of profit that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the consolidated
income statement.

The effective profit rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial lability and of
alocating customers’ share of profit over the relevant period, The effective profit rate is the rate that is
used to calculate the present value of estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective profit rate, transaction costs through the expected life
of the Anancial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to arrive at the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include ‘due to banks snd financial institutions’,

‘customers’ deposits’, ‘sukuk financing instruments’, ‘medium term wakala finance” and certain
‘payables and other liahilities’.

(2} Convertible sukuk financing instruments

Convertible sukuk financing instruments that can be settled at the option of the issuer are recorded as
compound financial instruments. The equity component of the convertible sukuk is calculated as the
excess of the issue proceeds over the present value of the future profit and principal payments, calculated
using the market rate of profit applicable to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion option,
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4 Sigodficant sccounting policies (continued)

(i} Financial liabilities and equity instruments {(continued)
iii. Financial Habilities {continued)

(3) Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial Jiabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

{(4) Financial gnarantee

A financial guarantee is an undertaking/commitment that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified party fails to meet its obligation when due
in accordance with the contractual terms.

Financial guarantees issued by the Bank are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the guarantee, as determined in accordance with [AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Linhilities and Contingent Assets; and ‘

»  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recoghition policies,

(5) De-recognition of Ninancizl liabilities

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged,
cancelied or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in consolidated income statement.

() Offsetting

Financial assets and habilities are offset and reported net in the consolidated financial position only when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and when the Bank intends to settle
gither on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the Hability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or for
gains and logses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank’s trading activity.

‘The Bank is party to a number of arrangements, including master netting agreements, that give it the right
to offset financial assets and financial Habikties but where it does not intend to settle the amounts net or
simultancously and therefore the assets and liabilities concerned are presented on a gross basis,
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4 Significant acconnting policies {(continued)

(k) Islamic derivative finaneial instruments

An Islamic derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to an underlying variable,
that requires Hrtle or no initial investiment and that is seftled at a future date. The Bank enters info a
variety of Islamic derivative financial instruments to manage the exposure to profit and foreign exchange
rate risks, including unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies and Islamic profit rate swap.

1slamic derivative financial nsteaments are initially measured at cost, being the fair value at contract date,
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, All Islamic derivatives are carried at thetr fair values as
assets where the fair values are positive and as liabilities where the fair values are negative. lslamic
derivative assets and Jiahilities arising from different transactions are only offset if the fransactions are
with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset exists, and the parties intend to seitle the cash flows on
# net basig,

Islamic derivative fair values are determined from quoted prices in active markets where available, Where
there is no active market for an instrument, fair value is derived from prices for the Tslamic derivative’s
components using appropriate pricing or valuation models,

The method of recognising fair value gaing and losses depends on whether [slamic derivatives are held for
trading or are designated as hedging instruments, and if the latter, the nature of the risks being hedged, All
gains and losses from changes in the fair value of Islamic derivatives held for trading are recognised in
consolidated income statement.

When Islamic derivatives are designated as hedges, the Bank classifies them as either: (i) hedges of the
change in the fair value of recognised assets or Habifities or fim commitments (“fair value hedges™; (ii)
hedges of the variabiiity in future cash flows attributable to a particular risk assoctated with a recognised
asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect future reported net income
(‘cash flow hedges'); or {iii) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation (‘net investment hedges’).
Hedge accounting 1s applied to Islamic derivatives desizmated as hedging instruments in a thir value, cash
flow or net investment hedges provided certain criferia are met.

At the inception of a hedging relationship, to qualify for hedge accounting, the Bank documents the
refationship between the hedging instruments and the hedged ttems as well as s risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Bank aiso requires a documented assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether or not the hedging instruments, primarily
derivatives, that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offzetting the changes attributable
to the hedged risks in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged items. Profit on designated qualifying
hedges is included in the consolidated income statement.

i Fair value hedges

Where a hedging relationship is designated as a fair value hedge, the hedged item is adjusted for the
change in fair value in respect of the risk being hedged. Gains or losses on the re-measurement of both the
[slamic derivative and the hedged item are recognised in the consolidated income statement. Fair velue
adjustments relating to the hedging instrument are allocated to the same consolidated income statement
category as the related hedped item. Any ineffectiveness is also recognised in the same consolidated
income statement category as the related hedged ttem. If the {slamic derivative expires, is sold,
terminated, exercised, no longer meets the criteria for fair value hedge accounting, or the designation 1s
revoked, hedge accounting is discontinued,
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4 Significant accounting policies {(continned)
(k) Islamic derivative financial instruments {continued)

ii Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of Islamic derivatives that are designated and quality as
cash flow hedges are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve in other comprehensive income. The
ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement as
trading revenus/loss. Amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to the consolidated income statement
in the periods in which the hedged item atfects profit or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that
is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial fiability, the cumulative
geins or losses previously deferred in equity are transferved from equity and imcluded in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability, When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the cumulative gains or losses recognised in
equity remam in equity until the forecast transaction is recognised, in the case of a non-financial asset or a
non-financial liability, or until the forgcast transaction affects the consolidated income statement. I the
forecast transaction is no longer expected (o cccur, the cumulative gains or losses recognised in equity are
immediately transferred to the consolidated income statement and classified as trading revenug/ioss.

iii  Islamic Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

All gains and losses from changes in the fair values of [slamic derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement as trading revenue/loss.
However, the gains and losses arvising from changes in the fair values of Islamic derbvatives that are
managed in conjunction with financial instruments designated at fair value are included in net income
from financial instruments designated at fair value under other non-profit revenue/loss.

Islamic derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts arve
treated as separate Islamic derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related 1o those
of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value with unrealised gains or losses
reparted in the consolidated income statement,

(1}  Unilateral promises to buy/sell currencies (the “Promises™)

The Promises are stated at fair value. The fair value of a Promise is the equivalent of the unrealised gain
or loss from marking to market the Promise using prevailing market rates. Prommses with positive market
vatue (unrealised gain) are included in other assets and Promises with negative market value (unrealised
losses) are included in other liabifities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

{m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted balances held with Central Banks, deposits
and balances due from banks, items in the course of collection from or in fransmission to other banks and
highly hguid assets with original maturities of less than three months from the date of acquisition, which
are subjeet to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management
af its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Segment veporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment {geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segmems. Segment income, segment expenses and segment performance include transfers between
business segments and between geographical segments. Refer to note 46 on Business Segment reporting,

{0) Acceptances

Acceplances sre recognised as financial Hability in the consolidated statement of financial position with a
contractual right of reimbursement from the customer as a financial asset. Therefore, commitments in
respect of acceptances have been accounted for as financial assets and financiai liabilities,

(3 Properties held for sale

Properties acquired or constructed with the intention of sale are classified as properties held for sale.
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for properties less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes the cost of land, infrastructure, construction and other related expenditure such as professional
fees and engineering costs attributable to the project, which are capitalised as and when the activities that are
necessary 1o get the assets ready for the intended use are in progress.

{qy Investment propertics

Investnen! properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured at cost iess
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depreciation on investment in buildings is charged
on 4 straight-line basis aver 25 years.

An investment property 15 derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which the property s derecognised.

Transfers to investment properties are made when, and only when there is change in use evidenced by
ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of
construction or development. Transfers from investment properties are made when, and only when, there
is change in use evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development
with a view to sale.
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4 Signaificant accounting pelicies (continued)

(v} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment loss, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fiture economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured retiably. All other repair and maintenance EXPENSEs are
charged to the consulidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valustion of assets, over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method as follows:

e Buildings 15-258 years
@  Plant and machinery 15-20 years
e Furniture and office equipment 3.3 years

s Information technology 3-5 years

e Motor vehicles 3 years

Freehold land is not depreciated,

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised vpon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plani and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Properties or assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, if any. Cost includes
all direct costs atiributable to the design and construction of the property including related staff costs, and
for qualifying assets, financing costs capitalised in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy, When
the assets are ready for intended use, the capital work in progress is transferred to the appropriate
property, plant and equipment category and is depreciated in accordance with the Bank’s policies.

{s) Impairment of tangible asyets

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
detenhine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asser belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the present value of the estimated future cash flows are calculated using a profit rate that reflects current
market assessments of the risks specific to the asset,

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(8) Impairment of tangible assets {continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. such that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

{t) Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the oblipation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision iz the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to setile the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or alt of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions, An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Bank has a contract under which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected 1o be received from
the contract.

(v} Emplovees’ end of service benefils

Pension and national insurance coniributions for the 1L AE. citizens are made by the Bank in accordance
with Federal Law No. 2 of 2000.

The Bank provides end of service benefits for iiz expatriate employees in accordance with U.ALE. Labour
Law. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the employees’ salary and length of service, subject
to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment.

(v} Share-based payment arrangement

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
at the grant date,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Bank’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest. At each reporting date, the Bank revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest, The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employees’ incentive plan reserve,
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4 Significant acconnting policies (comtinued)
(w} Taxation

Provision is made for current and deferred taxes arising from operating results of overseas subsidiaries in
accordance with the fiscal regulations of the respective countries in which the subsidiarics operate.

i Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

ii Breferred tax

Deferred tax iy recopnised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the compuiation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets ave generally recognised for alt deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

Deferved tax Habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investinents in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Bank is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable finure. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investrents and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxakle profits against which to ntilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that suffictent taxable profits will be available to ailow all or part of
the asset to be recovered,

(x} Zakat

Zakat for shareholders is computed based on “Net Invested Funds Method”™ which is in accordance with
the advice of the Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board.

The Zakat for the shareholders is accounted for as follows:
i Zakat accounted by the Bank on shareholders’ behalf

Zakat is accounted as per the Articles and Memorandum of Association of the Bank’s and is approved by
the Bank’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Boards on the following basis:
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Zakat (continoed)

i Zakat accounted by the Bank on sbareholders® behalf (continned)

e The portion of Zakat payable by the Bank on iis shareholders® behalf is calculated on “statutory
reserve’, ‘gencral reserve’, ‘retained earninps' and ‘provision for employees’ end of service
benefiis’,

s Zakat paid by investee companies directly are adjusted i shareholders Zakat, if the Bank only
accounts for net profit after Zakat of investee;

o Zakat on depositors’ investment risk reserve is calculated and deducted from the investment risk
reserve balance held with the bank and added to the Zakat payable balance; and

» Zakat is disbursed by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors and operating as per the by-
law set by the Board of Directors.

i Zakat payable by the sharchoiders

Zakat payable by the shareholders directly represents the differenttal/remaining Zakat after deducting the
Zakat accounted by the Bank on shareholders’ behalf.,

(y) Reveoue recognition
Revenue is measuved at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
i Income from financia! assets measured at amortised cost

Income from a financial asset measured at amortised cost s recognised when it 15 probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the amount of income ¢an be measured reliably. Income
from a financial asset measured at amortised cost is accrued/amortised on s time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective profit rate applicable, which is the rate that is used to calculate
the present value of estimated future net cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

it Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when the related services are performed,
ifi Mvidend income

Dividend income from other investments at falr value in equities is recognised when the right to receive
the dividend is established.

iv.  Imcome from cancellation of properties sale contract

Income from cancellation of properties sale contract (forfeiture income) is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when, in the case of properties sold and not yet recognised as revenue, a customer does
not fullil the contractual payment terms. This is deemed to take place when, despite rigorous follow-up
with the defaulted customer, as per the procedures set out by the Dubai Real Estate Regulatory Authority,
the customer continues to default on the contractual teyms.
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4 Signifieant accounting policies (continued)
(¥} Revenue recognition {continued)

v Revenue from sale of properties, net

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognized when the properties are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Bank has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Bank; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

F B 8 0

Cost of sale of property includes the cost of land and development costs. Development costs include the
cost of infrastructure and construction. The cost of sale in respect of apartments is based on the estimated
proportion of the development cost incurred to date to the estimated total development costs for each
project,

vi Rental income

The Bank’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 4(aa) below.

vii  Forfeited income

I according to the Bank’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board, the Bank is required to identify any
income deemed to be derived from transactions not acceptable under Islamic Sharia’a principles, as
interpreted by Fatwa and Sharie’a Supervisory Board, and to set aside such amount in a separate account
used to pay for local charitable causes and activities.

{z})  Depositors’ share of profit caleulation

Aljocation of profits between depositors and shareholders is calculated according to the Bank’s standard
procedures and is approved by the Bauk’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board.

(as) Leasing

i The Bank as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direet costs incwrred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-fine basis over the lease term.

ii The Bank as a lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease tern, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time patiern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
econormic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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4 Stentficant accounting policies {continued)

(ab) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial staterments of each individual Bank's entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items depominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the vates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denowinated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary ifems that are measured in terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary ftems are recognised in the consolidated mcome statement in the period
in which they arise except for:

+ exchange differences on foreign currency lslamic financing relating to assefs under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to financing costs on those foreign currency Islamic financings:

«  exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

« exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore formiag part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to the consolidated income statement on settlement of the monetary items,

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial staternents, the assets and labilities of the Bank’s
foreign operations are translated into Arab Emirates Dirham, which is the Bank’s presentation currency,
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, i any, are
recoghised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity {atiributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Bank is reclassified to the consolidated income statement.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Bank losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in the consolidated income statement. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint ventures that do not result in the Bank losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumuiated exchange differences is
reclassified 10 the consolidated income statement.

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and Habilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity.

5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

While applying the accounting policies as stated in Note 4, the management of the Bank has made certain
judgments, These judgments mainly have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of Islamic
financing and investing assets, investment securities and the fair values of Islamic derivative financial
instruments. The significant judgments made by the management in arriving at the carrying amounts of
Islamic financing and investing assets, investment securities and fair values of Islamic derivative financial
instruments are summarised as follows:
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5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continned)
{a) Impairment losses on Islamic financing and investing assets

The impairment allowance for Islamic financing and investing assets is established through charges to the
consolidated income statement in the form of an impairment allowance for doubtful Islamic financing and
investing assets.

i Individually assessed Istamic financing and investing assets

Impairment losses for individually assessed Islamic financing and investing assets are determined by an
evaluation of exposure on a case-by-case basis. This procedure is applied to all classified corporate
Islarnic financing and vesting assets which are individually significant accounts or are not subject to the
portfolio-based-approach.

The following factors are considered by management when determining allowance for impairment on
mdividual Islamic financing and investing assets which are significant:

® The amount expected to be realised on disposals of collaterals;
& The Bank’s ability to enforce its claim on the collaterals and associated cost of litigation; and
o The expected time frame to complete jegal formalities and disposals of collaterals.

The Bank’s policy requires regular review of the level of impairment allowances on individual facilities
and regular valuation of the collateral and its enforceability,

Impaired Islamic financing and investing assets continue to be classified as impaired unless they are
brought fully current and the collection of scheduled profit and principal is considered probable.

ii Collectively assessed Islamic financing and investing assets

Collective assessment of allowance for impairment {s made for overdue retail Islamic financing and
investing assets with common features which ave not individually significant and performing lslamic
financing and investing assets which are not found to be individually impaired.

This collective allowance is based on any deterioration in the internal rating of the asset or investment
since it was granted or acquired. These internal ratings take into consideration factors such as any
deterioration in country risk, industey and technological obsolescence, as well as identified structural
weaknesses or deterioration in cash fiows,

The management of the Bank assesses, based on historical experience and the prevailing economic and
credit conditions, the magnitude of Istamic financing and investing assets which may be impaired but not
identified as of the consolidated financial position date.

{(h} Classification of investments

The classification and measurement of the financial assets depends on the management’s business model
for managing its financial assets and on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets
assessed. Management is satisfied that the Bank’s investment in securities are appropriately classified and
measured,

Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost are those assets that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and profit,
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5 Critical accounting judgements and Key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continwed)
(b} Cliagsification of investments (continned)

Financial assets that are measured at FVTOCI are strategic investments in eguity instruments and
investment funds that are not held to benefit from changes in their fair value and are not held for trading.
The management believes that designating these instruments as ai FVTOCT provides a more meaningful
presentation of its medium to iong-term interest in its investments than holding the investments at fair
value through profit and foss.

Note 10 to these consolidated financial statements describes that the Bank owns more than 20% of two
investees and classifies them as other imvestments measured at FVTOC! a5 the management has
concluded that the Bank does not have significant influence over these investees. The conclusion of the
Bank was based on the facts that the Bank does not have representatives in the boards of these invesiees
and is not related to the fund managers.

Financial assets that are measured at FVTPL are either held for trading or designated as FVTPL.,
(¢) lmpairment of associates and joint ventures

After application of equity method of accounting, the Bank determines whether it is necessary to
recognise for any additional impairment loss on the carrying value of the investment in associates and
joint ventures by comparing their recoverable amounts with the higher of value in use or fair value less
costs to sell with their carrving amounts.

In determining the value in use of the investment, the Bank estimates;

» its share of the present vaiue of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
associates, including the cash flows from the operations of the assoclates and the proceeds on the
ultimate disposal of the investment; or

" the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received
from the investment and from its ultimate disposal.

(dy Islamic derivative financial instruments

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of Islamic derivative financial instruments measured at
fair value are generally obtained by reference to quoted market prices, present value calculation of the
estimated future cash flow models and recognised pricing models as appropriate, When independent prices
are not available, fair values are determined by using valualion techniques which refer to observable
inarket data, These include comparison with similar instruments where market observable prices exist,
present value caleulation of the estimated future cash flow analysis and other valuation technigues
commonly used by market participants.

The main factors which managenient considers when applying a model are:

» The likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows on the instrument. These cash flows are
usually governed by the terms of the instrument, although management judgement may be required
in situations where the ability of the counterparty to service the instrument in accordance with the
contractual terms is in doubt; and
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g Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of ancertainty {(condinued)

(&) Islamic derivative financial instruments (continued)

u An appropriate profit rate for the instrument that is used to calonlate the present value of the future
estimated cash flows, Management determines this rate, based on its assessment of the appropriate
spread of the rate for the instrument over the internal benchmark profit rate. When valuing
instromeints by reference to comparable mstruments, magagement takes oo account the maturity,
structure and rating of the instrumest with which the position held is being compared, When
valwing instruments on a model basis using the fair value of underlying components, management
constders, in addition, the need for adjustments to take account of a number of factors such as bid-
offer spread, eredit profile, servicing costs of portfolios and model uncertainty.

{ey  Fabr value of Anancial instruments

Certain assets and labilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management
has set up a valuation process, which involves finance and investment banking departments to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements,

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Bank uses market observable data to the extent it
is available, Where level 1 inputs are not available, they are determined using & variety of valuation
technigues that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from
observable market data where possible, but if this is not available, judgement is reguired to establish fair
values. The judgements include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as present value
calculation rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for ‘asset-backed’ securities.

Information about the valuation techniques and Inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets
and fiabilities are disclosed in note 50 to these consolidated financial statements.

(f)y Property, plant and equipment, and investment properties

The cost of property, plant and equipment, and investment properties is depreciated over the estimated
usefinl life, which is based on expecied usage of the asset, expected physical wear and teay, which depends
on operattonal factors. The management has not considered any resideal value as it is desmed immaterial,

{gy Control over a subsidiary

Notz 16 to these consolidated financial statememts describes that Deyaar Development PJS.C.
(“Deyaar’) is a subsidiary of the Bank even though the Bank has only 44.9% ownership interest and has
only 44.9% of the voting rights in Deyaar. Deyaar is a listed company in Dubai Financial Market, U.AE..
The Bank has held its 44.9% ownership since Deyaar’s inception and the remaining 55.1% of the
ownership interests arg held by numerous sharcholders that are uorelated to the Bank.

The Bank's management assessed whether or not the Bank has control over Deyaar based on whether the
Bank has practical ability to direct the relevant activities of Deyaar unilaterally. In making their
judgement, the management considered absolute size of the Bank’s holding in Deyaar and the relative
size and dispersion of the holdings of other sharcholders. After assessment, the management concluded
that the Bank has sufficiently dominant voting power to direct the relevant activities of Deyaar and
therefore the Bank has conteol over Devaar,

(k) Significant influence over an associate

Note 11 to these consolidated financial statements describes that Ejar Cranes & Equipment L.L.C.
(“Ejar™) is an associate of the Bank although the Bank only owns a 17% ownership interest in Ejar, The

Bank has significant influence over Ejar by being the major shareholder of Ejar, having 4 representative
in Ejar’s board of directors and being the major financing facilities provider to Ejar.
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g Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)

{(iy Classification of investees as joint ventures

AH investees classified as investment in joint ventuies are limited Hability companies whose legal form
confers separation between the parties to the joint arrangement and the investee themselves. Furthermore,
there are no contractual arrangements or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to
the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement,
Accordingly, all these investees are classified as joint ventures of the Bank.

& Cash and balances with central banks

(2)  The analysis of the Bank's cash and balances with central banks as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
is as follows:

2013 2012

AED G0 AED0O00

{Restated)

Cash on hand 1,740,992 1,732,034
Balances with central banks:

Current accourts RAR 259 1,336,509

Reserve requirentents with central banks {note 6 {¢)) 5,093,569 4,186,484

International murabahat with the Central Bank of the UALE. 14,988,144 8,218,972

Total 22,712,964 15,473,999

G e e e e ran

()  The geographical analysis of the cash and balances with central banks as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED 0D AED000

(Restated)

Within the U ALE. 22,546,487 18332900
Qutside the U.AE. 166.477 141,000
Total 22,712,964 15,473,999

{c} The reserve requirements are kept with the Ceniral Banks of the U.AE. and lslamic Republic of
Pakistan in the respective local currencies and US Dollar, These reserves are not available for use in
the Bank’s day to day operations, and cannot be withdrawn without the approval of the respective
central banks, The level of reserve required changes every month in accordance with the
reguirements of the respective central banks® directives,

7 Diue from banks and financial institutions
{a) The analysis of the Bank’s due from banks and financial institutions as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED 00D AEDFO00

(Restated)

Current accounts 2,461,844 652,058
Investment deposits 1,774,263 891,867
International murabahat - short term 5,370,061 1,749,154

Total 9,606,168 3,293,059
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7 Due From banks and financial institations (continued)

() ‘The geopraphical analysis of the due from banks and financial institutions as at 31 December 2013
and 2012 is a3 follows:

2013 2012

AED000 AED000

{ Restated)

Within the U AE, 7328001 2.341,167
Ontside the ULALE, 2,278,167 951,802

9,606,168 3,293.05¢

fumrtra- oy

Total

8 1slamic financing and investing assety, net

(a) The analysis of the Bank’s Islamic financing and investing assets, net, as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

2013 012
AEDGHO AEDQDD
{Restated)
Islamic financing Assefs
Vehicles murabahat 5,960,304 5,653,007
Commodities murabahat 4,276,412 3815483
feal estate murabahat 3.737,731 4264731
Internattonal murabahat - long term 884,689 286,150
Total murabahat 14,859,136 14,019,380
Other Harahs 13,160,813 11,519,558
Home finance fjarah 11,376,246 12318412
Satam 6,235,659 4 687,193
stisna‘s 3.482.002 4,491,950
Islamic credit cards 422,199 3682.490
49,536,055 47 428993
Deferved income (1,889,228 (2,318,116}
Contractors and consultants” Istisna’a contracts {122,585 (121,805}
Totel Islamic financing assefs 47,524,244 44989072
Jalamic investing Assets
Musharakat 5,644,561 6,824,046
Mudaraba 4,026,973 3,804,714
Wakalat 3448,133 3,474,278
Total Islamie investing asseis 13,119,667 13,693,038
Total Islamic finanreing and investing assets 60,643,911 58882110
Provigions for impairment (note 8(b)) (4,573,27%) {3,699422)

Total Istamic financing and investing assets, net 56,070,638 55,182,688
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3 Islamic financing and investing assets, net (confinued)

(b) The movements in the provision for impainnent during the vears ended 3] December 2013 and
2012 are as follows:

2013 2012

AED 000 AED'000

(Restated)

Balance at 1 January 3,699,422 3,508,874

Charge for the year 1,153,085 1,163,674
Release to the prolit or loss (301,455) (279,280}
Write-back/(write-off} during the year 6,802 {691,332)
Foreign exchange effect (5,799 (2.514)

Other 19,218 -

Balance at 31 December ' 4,573,273 3,699,422

Gross amount of Islamic financing and investing
agsets, determined to be impaired 5,654,003 6,118,070

(¢} The Bank, in the ordinary course of providing finance, holds collateral as security to mitigate credit
risk associgted with Islamic financing and investing assets. The collaterals include mortgage on
land and buildings and lien on savings and investment deposits, equities and other fixed assets, The
estimated value of collaterals for Islamic financing and investing assets other than retail assets
which are mainly asset based financing, is as follows:

2013 2012

AED*G00 AED 000

(Reslated)

Property and mortgages 40,066,671 41,000,515
Machineries and vehicles 2,091,096 2,238.444
Deposits and equities 1,648,335 FI9,402

(d) The fair value of collaterals that the Bank holds relating to facilities individually determined o be
impaired at 31 December 2013 amounts to AED 4.0 billion (2012 (Restated): AED 5.5 billion).

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Bank took possession of various underlying assets,
primartly vehicles, The Bank has sold repossessed assets amounting to AED 1.8 million (2012
(Restated): AED 7.5 million), which has been adjusted against the outstanding receivables.
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8 Islamic financing and investing assets, net (continued)

() Analysis of Islamic {inancing and investing assets, net by industry group and geography as at

31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013

Economic sector
Government
Manufacturing and services
Trade

Financial institutions

Reat estate

Consumer home finance
Consumer financing

Provision for impairment
Total

2012 (Restated)

Economic seetor
Government
Manufacturing and services
Trade

Financial institutions

Real estate

Consumer home finance
Consumer financing

Provision for impairment

Total

Within the
U.AE.
AED000

4,627,479
5,937,119
4,577,355
1,322,238
15,788,116
11,535,324
14,248,539

58,036,170

4,081,540
6,930,468
2,626,914
1,086,348
17,183,583
12,647,712
12,143,907

56,700,472

Outzide the
ULAL, Tatal
AED000 AEDB00
91,124 4,718,603
1,135,583 7072712
161,956 4,739,311
635,908 1,958,146
161.684 15,949,800
166,852 11,762,176
254,624 14,503,163
2,007,741 60,643,911
(4,573,273)
56,070,638
- 4,081,540
1,341,666 8,272,134
69,785 2,696,609
263,164 1,349,512
84,872 17,268,555
179,222 12,826,934
242 829 12,386,736
2,181,638 58,882,110

(3,6599,422)

55,182,688
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9 Investments in Eslamic sukok measured at amortised cost

{a) The geographical analysis of the Bank’s investments in Isiamic Sukuk as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED'000 AEDG00

(Restated)

Within the 1A LE. 10,204,306 10,066,975
Other G.C.C, Countries 519,985 233,249
Rest of the World 918,262 788,438
Total 11,642,553 11,088,662

(b)  Analysis of investments in Islamic sukuk measured at amortized cost by industry group as at
31 Pecember 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED000 AED000

(Restated)

Government 5,877,729 5,390,370
Manufacturing and services 2,433,353 2, 728401
Financial institutions 2330214 1,943,934
Real estate 942,257 1,025,946

Total 11,642,553 11,088,662

(¢} Investments in Islamic sukuk within the U.A.E. include investments in bilateral sukuk amounting to
AL 3,673 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012 (Restated): AED 3,673 million),

10 Other investments at fair valiue

(a)  The analysis of the Bank’s other investments at fair value as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as

follows:
613 2012
AED 000 AED 000
{Restated)
Investments designated at fair value through profit or loss 790 1,132
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehiensive income 2,028,867 1,979 900
Total 2,029.657 1,981,032

Bl RS

(b)  Analysis of other investmenis at fair value by industry group as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is
as follows:

2013 2012

AEDYH00 AED?000

{Restated)

Manufacturing and services 1,296,732 1,195,801
Financial institutions 442,959 455787
Real eutate 329966 329,444

Total 2,029,657 1,981,032
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10 Other investments at fair value (continued)
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(¢} The geographical analysis of the other investments at fair value as ar 31 December 2013 and 2012

is as follows:

2013

Investments designated at fair value
titraugh profit or loss

Quoted equity instruments

Investments measured at fair valuye
through other comprehensive income

Quoted equity instriments

Unguoted equity instrurnents

LInguoted investment fimnds

Total

2012 (Restated)

Investments designated at Fair valne
through profit or loss

Cuoted equity instroments

Investments measured st fair value
through other comprehensive income

Quated equity instruments

Unguoted equity instraments

Unguoted investrment funds

Total

Crther

Within G.C.C Rest of the
the 1, A.E. countries World Total
AED (6] AED 000 AED OG0 ALED000
704 - - 790
619,484 184,610 44,544 858,638
#03,348 42,749 84,326 938,423
3,016 5,795 344,008 239,806
1,437,248 228,654 362,965 2,028,867
1,438,038 228,054 362,965 2,029,657
1,132 . - 1,132
418,616 152,142 40,080 610,838
846,424 60,957 23,106 900,577
143,006 1,794 233,685 378,485
1,408,046 214,803 356,961 1,979,900
1,409,178 214,803 356,961 1,981,032

{d) During the year ended 31 December 2013, dividends received from financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (EVTOCI amounting to AED 20.2 million (2012
(Restated): AED 19.8 million) were recognized as gain from other investments at fair value in the
consolidated income statement (note 33).

(e} Unquoted investments include investments in two entities amounting to AED 230.2 million in
which the Bank owns more than 20% of each. These investments are not classified as investment in
associates as the Bank does not have a significant influence over these investees as explained in

note 5 (b) to these consolidated financial statements,
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11 Investments in asseciates and joint ventures
{a} The analysis of the Bank's investments in agsociates and joint ventures gs at 31 December 2013 and

2012 is a5 follows:

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Provision for impainment

Met invesiment in associates and joint veniures

43

2013 2012
AED 008 AED*000
(Restated)
1,040,876 2,063,448
(63.047) (33,495)
1,877,828 2,029,053

{b) The analysis of the Bank™s share of total comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
during the years ended 31 Decernber 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

The Bank's share of profit for the year *
The Bank's share of other comprehensive loss for the year

2013

AEDO00

The Banl's share of total comprehensive income for the year

18477
{71,142)

6,935

2012
AEDF000
{Restated)

60,857
(42,560}

18,297

* The Bank’s share of proiit for the vear ended 31 December 2013 is net of forfelted income of
AED 0.2 million (2012: AED 0.2 million).

{¢) Details of the Banl’s significant associates and joint ventures at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as

follows:

Name of associate or joint
venture

Bank of iKhartourn
Jordan Dubai Islamic Bank
Bosnia Bank International
Emirates REIT Management
Private Limited
Liguidity Management Center
Ejar Cranes & Equipment L.L.C.
{note 11i(e))
7. MESC Investrent Company
8. Bolidere International Al Zorah
Equily Investnents Inc
%, Landmark Properties L1LC
1. Emirates REIT CEIC Limited
{note 11(g))
11. Al Islami Aircraft Leasing
Limited

Fold b

&

12. Al Bustan Center Company L.L.C. Rental of apartments

13. Millennium Private Equity L.L.C. Fund management

I4. Al Rimal Development
15. Arady Development LLC
16, Alarko Deyaar Gayrimenkul

Place of

Principal activity
Barnking Sudan
Banking Jordan
Banking Bosnia
Properties management DIFC, UAE.
Brokerage services Balirain
Equipment leasing UAE.
Investments Jordan
Property developmer Cayman

Islands
Real estate brokerage LLAE.
Real estate fund U.AE
Alrcraft Leasing LLAE.

UAE. -

and shops
DIFC, UAE.

Property development LLAE,
Property development LAE.
Property development Turkey

2013

28.4%
20.8%
27.3%
15.0%

25.0%
16.7%

40.0%
20.7%

40.8%
39.2%

24.7%
80.0%
50.8%

58.6%
50.0%

incorporation Fercentage of holding

012
{Restated)
28.4%
20.8%
27.3%
25.0%

23.0%
16.7%

40.0%
22.7%

40.0%
362%

50.0%

50.0%
30.0%
50.0%
50.0%
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Motes to the conselidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

i1

(e

{e)

&y

{g)

()

M

Investments in associates and joint veniures (continued)

All of the above associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

Although the Bank holds less than 20% of the equity shares of Ejar Cranes & Eguipment L.L.C.,
and it has less than 20% of the voting power at shareholders meetings, the Bank exercises
significant influence by being one of the major sharcholders of the company, having a
representative in the company’s board of directors and being the major financing facilities provider.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Bank's listed associates is AED 168.9 million (2012
{Restated): AED 189.3 million), and the carryving amount of the Bank's interest in those associates
is AED 371.1 million (2012 (Restated): AED 409.6 million). All other investments in associates
and joint ventures are not listed in active markets and the management considers the carrying
amounts of these investments approximate their fair values,

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the management reassessed the conclusion on the
classification of their interests in entities and concluded that interest in Emirates REIT CEIC
Limited, U.A.E. and Al Islami Aircraft Leasing Limited, U.A.E. The Bank reclassified from other
investments measured at FVTOCT to investment in associate as the Bank has significant influence
over both entities. Emrates REIT CEIC Limited’s reclassification was a prior year error and
accordingly comparative figures were restated as disclosed in note 53 to these consolidated
financial statements.

Bank of Khartoum, Sudan; Jordan Dubai Islamic Bank, Jordan; Solidere international Al Zorah
Equity Investments Ine, Cayman [slands; and Arady Development LIC, U.AE, are considered as
the Bank’s material associates and joint venlures for financial reporting purposes. Summarized
financial information in respect of each of the Bank’s material associates and joint ventures is set
out below. The summarized financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associates’ and joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS and adjusted
by the Bank for equity accounting purposes.

Bank of Khartoum (“BOK™)

Assets
Liabilities

Net assels of the associate

Revenue

Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends received during the year

2013
AEDG00

5,199,884
{4,457,546)

2012
AED600
(Restated)

7,557.275
(6,552,627}

742,338

1,004,648

324,239

559,148

183,509

159,701

185,569

159,701

13,635
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

11 Envestments in associates and joint ventares (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in
BOK recognized in these consolidated financial statements:

2013 2012

AED*00G AED 000

{ Restated)

Net assets of the associate 742,338 1,004,648
Proportion of the Bank's ownership interest in BOK 28.4% 28.4%
Carryving amount of the Bank’s interest in BOK 210,824 285,320

s o

These figures are extracted from the financial information of Bank of Khartoum for the nine-month
period ended 30 September 2013 (latest available financial infonmation) and for the year ended 31
December 2012, Management believes the financial information for the year ended 31 December 2013
will not be materiatty different from 30 September 2013,

(i)  Jordan Dubai Islamic Bank (“JDIB™)

2013 2012

AED000 AEDG00

(Restated)

Assets 2,977,716 2,349 137
Liabilities {2,207,041) (1,590,380

Net assets of the associate 770,735 738,745

Revenue 128,067 33,033

Profit/{loss) for the year 11,977 (8,191

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income/{loss) 11,977 (8,167

Dividends received during the vear - .

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in
JIMB recognized in these consolidated financial statements:

2013 2012

AED’000 AED000

(Restated)

Net assets of the associate 776,735 758,745
Proportion of the Bank’s ownership interest in JDIB 20.8% 20.8%

Carrving amount of the Bank’s interest in JINB 166,313 157,819
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Notes te the consolidated financizl statements
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i1 Jovestments in associates and joint ventares (continued)

These figures are extracted from the financial information of Jordon Dubai Islamic Bank for the
ning-month period ended 30 September 2013 (latest available financial information) and for the year
ended 31 December 2012, Management believes the financial information for the year ended 3}

December 2013 will not be materially different from 30 September 2013,

(k) Solidere International Al Zorah Equity Investments Inc (“Zorah™)

2013 2012

AED'000 AEIY000

(Restated)

Asgsels 1,128,639 1,125414
Liabilities (222.683) (222,018)
Met assets of the assoviate 903,956 603,396
Revenue 8,626 11,436
Profit for the year 4,194 6,167
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 4,194 6,167

Bividends received during the year -

Reconctliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in

Zorah recognized in these consolidated financial statements:

2013 2012

AED00 AED GO0

(Restated)

Net assets of the associate 203,956 003,394
Proportion of the Bank’s ownership interest in Zomah 22.7% 22.7%
Carrving amount of the Bank’s interest jn Zorah 205,652 205,071
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Motes {6 the consclidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

i1 Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

(Y Arady Development LLC (“Arady™)

Assets
Liabilities

Net assets of the joint venture

Revenue

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

Dividends received during the vear

49

(30,156}

2613 2012
AED 000 AED000
{Restated)
1,886,410 1,826,798
(381.4406) {1.021,784)
1,504,964 795,014
{30,156) (3.956)
{3,956)

Reconeiliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in

Arady recognized in these consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of the joint venture
Proportion of the Bank’s ownership interest in Arady

Carrying amount of the Bank's interest in Arady

2013
AED060
1,504,964

50.0%

752,482

2032
AED’000
{Restated)
795014

50.0%
397,507

(m) Aggregate information of associates and joint ventures that are not individually material

The Bank’'s share of financial position:
Axzsets
Liahilities

Net assets of the associates and joint venfures

The Bank Share of revenue & total comprehensive fncome:

Revenue

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive 1oss

Total comprehensive income

Dividends received during the vear

2013 2812
AED 00D ALD000
(Restated)
1,208,484 1,401,009
(659,926) (383.278)
548,558 1,017,731
92,242 80,541
37027 17335
{3.974) -
33,053 17,335
23,285 -
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1% invesimenis in associates and joint ventares {continued)

(n} Movement of provision for impairment of investments in associates during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AEB060 AED 000

(Restated)

Balanee at 1 January 33,495 3382

Charge for the vear (note 41) 29 552 33,495
Derecognized investments in associates “ {8,382y

Balanee at 31 December 63,047 33,495

(0}  The geographical analysis of the investment in associates net of provision for impajrment as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

ARG AEDTGO0

(Restated)

Within the U.AE. 1,389,009 1,060,057
Other G.C.C. Countries 56,931 53,628
Rest of the world 431,889 016,268
Total 1,877,829 2,029,953

(p) During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank disposed of its interest in equity of
certain associates and joint ventures. This resulted in the recognition of 2 gain/(loss) calculated as

follows:
2013 2012
AED000 AED 000
(Restated)
Proceeds of disposal 138,717 29100
Carrving value of the investments at the time of disposal {190.,353) (24.318)

{Loss)/gain recognized (note 37) {(53,636) 4,791
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

12 Properties held for sale

(2) Properties held for sale represent properties in the U.AE. and outside the U.AE. that are registered

in the name of the Bank’s entities.

{(b)  The movement of the properties held for sale during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is

as follows:

Properties
Other real under
estate  constroction Land Fotal
AED 000 AED80  AED'0G0 AED060
2013
Balance at 1 Japuary 2013 215,832 841,542 240,600 1,997,374
Additions 194 102,580 4,391 107,165
Disposals (note 36) {391,518) (13,703) - (405221)
Reversal of impairment during the year (note 41) - 150,000 - 156,060
Transfers 754,117 {(754,117) - -
Foreign exchange effect (8,345) - - (8,345)
Balance at 31 December 2013 1,276,280 326,302 244,321 1,840,973
2012 (Restated)
Balance at 1 January 2012 as previously
Reported 504,472 165,284 - 609,756
Impact of adoption of IFRS 10 & 11 669,299 1,039,600 240,000 1,948,800
Balance at 1 Japuary 2012 after adoption of
IFRS 10 & 11 (Restated) 1,173,771 1,144 884 240,000 2,558,655
Additions 18,907 147,163 - 166,070
Disposals (note 36) (268,641) . = {268,641
Impaired during the year (note 41) (104,829 31,660 - (73,169)
Transferred to investment properties (note 13 (b)) (381,749) - - (381,749
Transfers 482,163 {482,165} - .
Foreign exchange effect (3,792) - - (3,792)
Balance at 31 December 2012 915,832 1,997,374

841,542 240,000

{¢} The geographical analysis of properties held for sale as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as

follows:
20613 2012
AED MG AED000
{Restated)
Within the U.AE, 1,736,102 1,877,754
Outside the U ALE, 104,871 118,620
Total 1,840,973 1,997,374
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MNaotes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 3% December 2013 {continued)

13 Investment properties

{a) Movement in investment properties during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is a8

follows:

2013

Cost:

Balance st 1 January 2613
Additions

Bisposal

Foreign exchange effect

Balunce at 31 December 2013

Acenmuirted depreciation and impairment;

Balance at 1 January 2013

Depreciation charged for the year

(Reversal of impairment)/impatrment losses recognized,
net {note 41)

Disposal

Foreign exchange effiect

Balanee at 31 December 2013
Carrying amount &t 31 Decernber 2013

2012 (Restated)

Cost:

Balance at 1 danuary 2012 {25 previouwsly reported)
Impact of adoption of IFRS 10 & 11

Balance a1 T January 2012 after IFRS 10 & 11{Restated)
Additions

Transferred from properties held for sale (note 13 (b))
Disposal

Eliminated on foss of control in subsidiaries (note 16 ()
Foreign exchange effect

Other

Balance at 33 December 2012

Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
Balarice at 1 January 2012
Impact of adoption of IFRS 10 & 11

Balance at 1 fanuary 2012 after IFRS 10 & 11{Restated)
Depraciation charged for the year
(Reversal of impairment)impairment losses recognized,
net (inote 41}
Foreign exchange effect
Transferced from properties held for sale (note 13 (b))

Bilance at 31 Decambeor 2012

Carrying amount at 31 December 2012

Investment
properties
Other under
real estate  construction Land Totyl
ARG AED000 AED'00G AEDH00
204,269 670,397 1,147,763 2,722,424
1,410 14,813 - 16,223
(147,101} - - {(107,101)
6,938 - - 6,938
805,516 GE5, 210 1,147,763 2,638,489
195,883 39,360 304,187 639,419
36,198 “ - 36,1958
62,239 - (37,13%) 24,504
(80,530) - - {80,536}
5,590 “ m 5,590
319,374 30,369 266,432 625,174
486,142 645,841 881,331 2013314
1,081,049 430,266 472,072 2.003,387
{19,314} “ 312,494 293,180
1,061,733 450,266 784,566 2,296,567
337,974 32,8158 23,386 304,175
69,763 187,316 339,811 506,890
(27} - - (27}
(383,266} - “ (585,2668)
8,990 “ - 8,990
11,100 - " 11,100
04,269 670,397 1,147,763 2722429
218,182 - - 218,182
{6,064} " 165,920 159 856
212,118 - 165,920 378,038
31,338 " g 31338
26,601 - (12.641) 13,960
942 - . o432
24,8584 39,369 150,888 215141
205,883 39,369 304,187 639419
608,386 631,028 543,596 2,083,010

A T 1 e i
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13 Investmeent properties {continued)
() Transfer from properties held for sale during the year ended 31 December 2012 is as followas:
2012
AED 000
{Restated)
Other real estate 69,763
Investment properties under construction 1875316
Land 339,811
Total cost (nofe 13 (ai 396,890
Accumulated impairment (note 13 (a}) (215,141)
Total carcying amount (note 12 (b)) 381,749
(¢) The geographical analysis of investment properties as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:
Properties
Other under
real estate  construction Land Total
3 AL 800 AED 000 AEDO00 ARD 008
Cost:
Within the LLAE. 388,447 685,210 890,580 1,961,237
Quiside the UAE. 422,264 - 257,182 679,451
Total enst BO7,716 685,210 1,147,762 2,640,688
Accumukated deprectation and impairment {627,374)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 2,033,314
2012 (Restated)
Cost;
Within the U.AE. 382,070 670,397 890,580 1,943,047
Outzide the U.AE. 326,399 - 257,182 783,781
Total cost 908,669 &70.397 1,147,762 2,726,828
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (643,818)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 2,083,010
(d) The fair value of the Bank’s investment properties as at 31 December 2013 is AED 3.2 billion

(2012 (Restated): AED 3.2 billion). The fair value is mainly based on observable market inputs (i.e.
level 2},

The Bank has carried out internal and external valuation of these properties as at 31 December 2013
and 2012, The valuations are carried out by professional valuers not related to the Bank who holds
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of the investment property being valued. The valuations were based on comparable
transaction method and present value calculation of the estimated future cash flow mode! supported
by existing lease and cumrent market rents for similar properties in the same location adjusted to
reflect the level of completion of construction of these properties. The profit rate, which is used to
calculate the present value of the future cash flows, reflects current market assessments of the
uncertainty and timing of the cash flows,

The valuations were based on an individual assessment, for each property type, of both the future
earnings and the required yield, In assessing the future earnings of the properties, potential changes
in rental levels from each contract’s rent and expiry date compared with estimated current market
rent, as well as changes in occupancy rates and property costs.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

13 Investment properties {(continued)

>4

{e} Investment properties include properties amounting AED 376.6 million (2012 (Restated):
AED 433.2 milijon) have been mortgaged by one of the Bank’s eutities as a security financing

obligation to another bank.

14 Receivables and other assets

(a) The analysis of the Bank’s receivables and other assets as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as

follows:
2013 2012
AED'00D AED000
{Restated)
Receivables on sale of investment properties, net (note 14 () 2,339,881 2,330 881
Due from customers (note 14 (c)) ' 895,785 889,000
Acceptances 858,556 679,425
Trade receivables 227413 256,854
Other income receiviable 138,803 165,650
Clearing receivables 38,154 74,168
Prepaid expenses 82,782 T7.276
Advances to conlractors 38.781 18,169
e from emplovess 31,778 31,692
Falir value of Islamic derivatives (note 47 (a)) 21,041 41,288
Deferred tax asset (note 22 (b)) 3.691 9,749
Inventories 2,147 15,882
Other 351,606 372,487
8,080,448 4,971,52]
Provision for impairment {note 14(b)) {129,074 {79,563)
Total 4987374 4,891,958

{p) Movement of provision for impairment during the vears ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as

follows:
2013 2012
AED*000 AEDGR0
{Restated)
Balance at 1 January 79,463 51,203
Charped during the year 74,647 51,561
Releases during the vear {6,213) {7.154)
(Other movement (18,921) -
Write-off - (16,047}
Ralance at 31 December 129,074 79,563
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

i4

(e)

{d)

Receivables and other assets (continued)

Due from customers represent overdrawn current accounts and other accounts that do not meet the
definition of Islamic financing and investing assets, The balances are stated net of provision for
impairmett amounting to AED 473.0 million (2012 (Restated). AED 473.0 million). The Bank
holds collaterals amounting to AED 1,250 million (2012 (Restated): AED 951.0 million) apainst
these accounts.

The Bank entered into sale and purchase agreements to sell investment properties in prior years.
The salient terms and conditions of the sales and purchase agreements are as follows:

e The sales consideration is receivable on or bafore 30 December 2016;

» The sales consideration can be settled i cash or in kind or a combination of cash and in kind, at
the diseretion of the buyer. In case full setilement of consideration or part thereof is in kind,
assets to be offered in lieu of the full sales consideration or part thereof, must be of equal value
(as verified by an independent real estate consultant jointly appointed by the buyer and the
setler) to the amount due and payable under the agreement; and

e The cotmimitments on the remainmg original purchase price for the plots of land remain with the
Bank,

Receivables on sale of investment properties are stated net of provision for impairment amounting
1o AED 101.2 million (2012 (Restated): AED 49.1 million).
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Motes to the conselidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 {continued)

B

A

11,
t2,
13.
14,
15.

16.

Subsidigries

The Bank’s material interest held directly or indivectly in the subsidiaries is as follows:

Mame of subsidiary

DiB Capital Limired

Pubai Istamnic Bank Pakistan Ltd.
Tamweel P.J.5.C. {note 16 ()

Dubai [slamic Financial Services L.L.C.

Deyaar Development P.J.S.C.
{note 2 (a})

Dar al Shariah Financial & Legal
Consthaney 110,

Al Tanmyah Services L.L.C.

Al Tatweer Al Hadith Real Estate

Al Tameer Modem Real Estare
Investimen

Al 'Tanmiz Modern Real Estate
Investrment

Naseej Fabric Manufacturing L.L.C.

DBI8 Printing Press L.L.C.

Levant One Investment Limited

Petra Lintited

Al Islami Real Estate Investments Lid,

Emirates Automative Leasing
Company

Omegas Engineering L.L.C. (note 16())

Principal activity

favestments and Cinanciat
services

Banking

Financing and investment

Brokerage services

Real estate development

Financial and legal
advisory

Labour services

Real estate development
Real estate development

Real estate development

Textile Manufacturing
Printing

Investments

Investments

Investmeants

Tradmg in motor vehicles

Real estate

Flace of
inzorporation
and operation

DIFC, UALL

Pakistan
UAE
U.AE.
UAE

ULALE.

U.AE.
Egypt
Egypt

Egypt

UAE.
AE.
ULAE.
Cayman Isiands
UAE.
AL

UAL

28

Proportion and
ownership interest
and voting power
held by the Bank

2013
95.5%

104.0%
B6.5%
05.3%
44.9%

68.4%

D0.8%%
100.0%
100.0%,

100.6%

99.0%
005
100.0%,
1H00.0%,
100.0%,
160.69%

202
93.5%

100.0%
58.3%
05.5%
44.9%

60.0%

09.5%
100.0%
100.0%

100,0%

99.0%
92.5%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

100.0%
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16

(&

18,
19,
20.

21,

25,
26,
7.

28,
a8,

3L
32,
XN
34
33,

)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The following Special Purpose Vehicles (“SPV™) were formed to manage specific transactions
including funds, and are expected to be closed upon completion of the related ransactions.

Place of Proportion and ownership

incorporation interest and voting power

Name of &PV Pristeipal petivity and aperation halil by the Bank
: 2013 012
HoldInvest Real Estate Sarl Investmenis Luxembourg Controlling  Conuolling
interest interest

France Invest Resl Estate SAS Investments France Comralling  Controlling
fnterast interest

SARL Barbannjers investrnents France Controiling  Controfling
interest interest

8! le Sevine Invesiments France Controlling  Controliing
interest intorest

Findl Real Estate SAS Investrments Franve Controling  Controlling
interest interest

PASR Einudzwanuigste Investmenis Austria Controlling  Controlling
Beteiligunsverwaltung GMBH interest interest
Al Tsiami German Holding Co. GMBH Investrments Germany Controlling  Conteolling
intarest interest

Rhein Logisties GMIIH Investments Germany Controlling  Controlling
interest inlerest

Jef Holdings BV Investments Metherlands Contralling  Controlling
interest imierest

Zone Two Real Estate Management Co. Investments Cayman fslands  Controlling  Controlling
interest interest

Zone Ome Real Eslate Manapement Co,  Investments Cayman Tslands 100.0% 100.0%
Al Istami Trade Finance ¥7 L.L.C. Investments LLAE. 100.0%% 100.0%
DIB Lease Une Lid. Investments Bahamas 100.0% 100.0%
DIB Lease One (Dublin) Lid, Investments Ireland 100.0% 100.084
Gulif Atlantic FZ L.L.C. Investments LLAE, 100.0% 100.0%
Al Islami Ceeanie Shipping Co FZ LL.C. Tnvestments U.A.E. 10a,0% 100.0%
Sequia Investments L.1.C. Invesimients AL, 99.0% 99.0%
Blue Mile Iovestmems L.L.C. Investments U.A.E. 48 0% 99.0%

In addition to the registered ownership described above, the remaining equity in the entities 1, 4, 7,
1}, 12, 34 and 335 are alse beneficially held by the Bank through normines arrangements.

On 3 Janusry 2013, the Bank’s Board of Directors announced its infention to acquire 100% of
Tamweel PLLS.C (“Tarnweel”) shares by offering DIB shares in exchange for Tamweel shares to
the non-controlling shareholders. The Bank obtained the appraval of its shareholders in the
Extraordinary Annual General Meeting conducted on 4 Mareh 2013 and subsequently obtained ail
required approvaly from the regulatory authorities, including The U.A.E. Ministry of Financs,
Securities and Commodities Authority of the U.A.E,, the U.AE, Central Bank and Dubai Financial
Market,

During the year ended 31 Dlecember 2013, the Bank issued 156.7 million shares at 2 par value of
AED 1 per share to the non-controlling interest of Tamweel, who accepted the Bank’s offer of
swapping 10 new DIB shares for every 18 Tamweel shares, This transaction increased the Bank’s
percentage of equity in Tamweel to 86.5% and the difference of AED 327.0 million between the fair
value of the 156.7 miltion DB shares and the camying amount of non-controlling inferest acquired
was recognized in retained earnings.
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(e)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Bank that have material non-
controlling interests:

&)

(&)

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting rights Profit allocated to

teld by the non- nof-controlling Accumulated nop-
MName of subsidisry cantrolling interests interests controlling interesis
2013 2013 2013 2012 2013 20612

AED'O00  AEDOGO AED000  ARD 00D AEDODD  AED'TOD

I Tamweel PJLSCLUAE, 13,5% 41.7% 19,238 29,719 312,503 965,971
2. Deyaar Development P.1LS.C, (note 16{(f))  55.1% 55.1%4 85216 21291 1,734,230 1,633,841
3. Individually immaterial subsidiaries

with non-controiling interests 2,636 12,362 3,771 5,321

2,805,133

Total 107,090 63,372 2,050,504

T T AT U IR = JEm— .

Deyaar Development P.J.8.C. (“Deyaar™) is a subsidiary of the Bank even though the Bank has only
44.9% ownership interest and has only 44.9% of the voting rights in Deyaar. The Bank has held its
44.9% ownership since Deyaar’s listing and the remaining 55.1% of the ownership interests are held
by numerous shareholders that are unrelated to the Bank, none individually holding more than 5%.

The Bank’s management assessed whether or not the Bank has control over Deyaar based on
whether the Bank has practical ability to direct the relevant activities of Deyaar unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the management considered the Bank’s absolute size of holding in Deyaar
and the relative size dispersion of the holdings of other sharcholders. After assessment, the
management conchuded that the Bank has a sufficiently dominant voting power to direct the relevant
activities of Deyaar and therefore the Bank has control over Deyaar,

Summarised financial information in respect of cach of the Bank's subsidiaries that has material
son-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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16 Subsidiaries (continued)

(h) Tamweel P.J.8.C. summarised financial information for the years ended 31 December 2013

and 2012
2013 2012
ARDG00 AED (00
(Restated)
Staterment of financial position
Isiamic financing and investing assets, net 7,676,168 0,324 190
Other &671,70% 1,622,676
Total asseis 8,347,809 10,946,866
Customers” deposits . 1,478,680
Due to banks and financial institutions 4,650,000 3,498,750
Sukuk financing instruments 1,102,500 3287650
(her 248,346 358,082
Total tiabilities 6,000,840 8,633 162
Equity 2,347,029 2,313,704
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 20,876 20,876
Statermernt of comprefiensive income
Total income 587336 644 3164
Total expenses (290,724) (270,575
Depositors’ and sukukholders™ share of profit {194,084) (302,609)
Profit for the year 112,528 71,183
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 102,528 71,183
Statement of cash flows
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities (952,670) 121,886
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) investing activities 7,027 (56,656)
Net cash tflows generated from financing activitics - 859,949

Met cash flows (used inY/generated during the vear {945.643) 525,179
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16 Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Deyaar Development PJ.S.C. summarised finanecial information for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012%

2013 2012
AED080 AED' Q00
{Restated)
Statement af financial position
investment in associates and joint ventures 084,943 1,163,148
Properties held for sale 1,670,962 1,820,278
Investment properties 265,521 215917
Receivables and other assets 1,994,737 1,990,369
Other 458,198 239,825
Total assets 5,379,361 %440 537
Duie to banks and financial ingtitutions 826,389 887.450
Pavables and other Habilities 1,408,402 1.679.302
Total liabhilities 2,234,791 2,566,752
Equity 3,144,570 2882785
Dividends paid to pon-controlling interests - -
Statement of comprehensive income
Total income 281,483 275,315
Total expenses {B7.863) (189,946)
Depositors”™ and sukukholders™ share of profit {24,927} {38,20%)
Share of loss from associates and joint ventures (14,176} {8,559}
Profit for the yvear 154,517 38,608
Other comprehensive ineome 26,861 5,780
Total comprehensive income 181,378 44,385
Statement of cash flowy
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 255,384 4,811
Net cash flows generated fiom Investing activitics 140,630 6,625
Net cash flows generated from/{used in) financing activities 54,350 {73,337)
Net cash flows generated/(used in) during the vear 449,964 (61,901

* Adjustments were made 1o the above financial information to bring the subsidiary’s accounting policies
in line with those used by the Bank.
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16  Subsidiaries (confinued)

{j)  During the vears ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank has lost control over certain
subsidiaries. Below is the analysis of assets and liabilities of subsidiaries over which control was
lost at the date of derecognition:

2013 2012

ALED 000 AED0O00

{Restated)

Investment properties (note 13 (a)) - 585,266

Other 15,536 179,211

Total assets 15,536 764,477
Dhie to banks and financial institutions - (235,744)
Other (35, 770" {166,697
Total liabilities (55,770 (402.441)
Non-conirofling interest - {180,605

Met (liabilities)/assets disposed of (note 16 (k) (40,234) 181,431

{(k} Gain recognized on Joss of control of subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December 2013 and

a012:
20613 2012
AED000 AED0O0
(Restated)
{Net HabilitiesY fair value of investments retained (12,555) 184,806
Less: Net labilities settled/(assets disposed of) (note 16 (i) 40,234 {181.,431)
Gain recognized (note 37) 2679 31375
17 Cuostomers’ deposits
{a) The analysis of the Bank’s customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:
2013 012
AEDH0 AED000
{Restated)
Current accounts 20,600,115 17,802,921
Saving accounts 12,927,264 11,264,634
nvestment deposits 45,126,102 37,310,636
Margin accounts 226,332 169,011
Depositors’ investment risk reserve {note 17 (2)) 105,396 64,748
Depositors’ share of profit payable (note 17 (d)) 69,332 113,573
Total

66,725,523
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17 Customers' deposits (continued)

{b) Analysis of customers’ deposits by geography as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as foliows:

2013 2012

AED*000 AED0060

{Restted)

Within the U.ALE. 75,591,875 64,139,934
Outside the U.ALE. 3,468,666 2,585,589
Totat 79,068,541 66,725,523

(c)} Depositors’ investment risk reserve represents a portion of the depositors’ share of profits set aside
as a reserve. This reserve is payable to the depositors upon the approval of the Bank’s Fatwa and
Sharia’a Supervisory Board. Zakat on depositors’ invesiment risk reserve is included under Zakat
payable and is deducted from the depositors’ investment risk reserve balance.

Moavement of depositors’ investment risk reserve during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED 000 AED'000

{Restated)

Balance at § January 64,748 33,157
Zakat for the vear (note 23) (2.788) {1,713)
Net transfer from depositors’ share of profit during the year (note 17 (d)) 43436 33,304
Balance at 31 December (note 17 (a)} 105,396 64,748

(d) Movement of depositors’ share of profit payvable during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED600 AELY 000

{Restated)

Balance at 1 Janunary 113,873 158,522
Depositors” share of profit for the vear (note 42) 453,300 612,542
Net transfer to depositors’ investment risk reserve (note 17 (&) {43.436) (33,304)
Less: amount paid during the vear {454,105) (624,187)

Balance at 31 Pecember (noete 17 (a)) 69,332 113,573
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18 Due to banks and financial institutions

{a) The analysizs of the Bank’s due to banks and financial institutions as at 31 December 2013 and
is as follows:

2012

2013 2012

AED000 AEDY000

{ Restated)

Current accounts 177,616 344,963
Investment deposits 2,452,399 6,323,037
Tota} 2,630,006 6,668,000

(b} The geographical analysis of the Bank's due to banks and financial institutions as at 31 Dece
2013 and 2012 is a5 follows:

mber

2613 2012

AED(00 AED'000

{Restated)

Within the UALE. 1,666,936 6,031,640
Outside the U AE, 963,070 636,360
Totzl 2,630,000 6,668,000

19 Sukok financing instruments

(a) The analysis of the Bank’s sukuk financing instruments as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

2013 2042

AEDO) AED 0G0

{Restated)

Sukuk financing instrurnents issued by the Bank (note 19 (b)) 1,836,560 1,836,500

Sukuk financing instruments issued by a subsidiary (note 19 {¢)) 971,103 2,837,460

Total 2,807,603 4,673,960

(by In May 2012, the Bank, through a Sharia’s compliant financing arrangement, esiablished a Trust
Certificate Issuance Programme for USD 2,500 million (the “Programme™). As part of the
Programme, the first series of the trust certificates amounting to USD 500 million (AED 1,836.5

million) were issued and listed on Irish Stock Exchange on 30 May 2012,

The terms of the Programme include transfer of certain identified assets (the “Co-Owned Assets™)
including original leased and musharakat assets, Sharia’a compliant authorised investments and any
replaced assets of the Bapk to DIB Sukuk Limited, Cayman Islands (the “Issuer™). These assets are

under the control of the Bank and shall continue 1o be serviced by the Bank.

The lssuer will pay the semi-annually distribution amount from returns recefved in respect of the

Co-Owned Assets. Such proceeds are expected to be sufficient to cover the semi-ann

vally

distribution amount payable to the sukuk holders on the semi-annually distribution dates. Upon
maturity of the sukuk, the Bank has undertaken to buy these assets at the exercise price from the

Iasuer.

These sukuk [inancing instruments mature in May 2017 and is expected to pay profit to the

investors semi-annually based on 6 months LIBOR + 3.65% per annum at the time of issuance,



Dubai Isfamic Bank P.4.5.C, 66

Nates to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 Becember 2013 (continued)

19

()

20

{a)

(b)

Sukuk financing instruments {continued)

In 2008, a subsidiary of the Bank issued Sharia’a compliant, convertible sukuk for & total value of
USD 300 million (AED 1,101.9 milion) at an expected profit rate of 4.31% per annum. Realised
profit on these sukuk was paid quarterly in arrears.

The sukuk was listed on NASDAQ Dubai, U.A.E. and was redeemed foily in cash on maturity in
January 2013,

In 2008, another Sharia’a compliant, non-convertible sukuk was isswed in the form of Trust
Certificates for the total valwe of AED 1,100 million at an expected profit rate of 3 months
FIBOR + 225 basis points per annum. Realised profit on these sukuk was paid quarterly in arrears,
These sukuk were lsted on NASDAQ Dubai, U.AE. and redeemed fully in cash on maturity in
July 2013

In 2012, a subsidiary issued Sharig’a Compliant Trust Certificates of USE 300 million
(AED [,101.9 million) at an expected profit rate of 5.15% per annum. Realised profit on these
certificates s payable semi-annually in arrears. The certificates are listed on the Irish Siock
Exchange, Irefand and mature in 2017.

Medium term wakala finance

The Bank opted to re-categorise wakala deposits received in 2008 from UAE Ministry of Finance
amounting to AED 3.8 billion to Tier 2 qualifying finance (“Tier 2 finance™). The conversion
process has been appraved by the Shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting held in April
2009,

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Bank repaid Ministry of Finance medium term
wakala finance in full before its contractual maurity in December 2016 after obtaining the
necessary regulatory and government approvals,
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21 Payables and other Habilities

() The analysis of the Bauk’s payables and other Habilities as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as

follows:
2013 2012
AED*000 ALED000
{Restated)
Transaction amanat accounts {note 2 1{b)) 7,293,849 69,157
Trade payables 1,280,192 1,251,373
Acceptances pavable B5R8.556 679,415
Bankers cheqgues 381,903 2392872
Investiments related payable 293,585 293 585
Payable for properties 215687 215382
Vendor payable for lslamic financing and investing assets 170957 F17,291
Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits (note 21 (d)) 154 050 131,666
Sundry deposits 123,380 166,150
Clearing pavable 99,708 70,125
Pepositors’ and sukuk holders’ share of profit payable (note 21(c)) 97.848 143,015
Accruals and other provisions 97.131 267,665
Deferred income 71,156 17,783
Payable to contractarg 46,097 154,083
Unclaimed dividends 35,540 35,610
Fund transfer and remittances 19,606 19,921
Fair value of Islamic derivative Habilities (note 47 {a)) 10,136 27,963
Directors” remuneration payable 5350 5,350
Provision for taxation (note 22 (a)) 2,239 3,590
Other 1,005,541 1,025,152
Total 12.282.511 4,934,700

(b)  Transaction Amanats accounts represent escrow accounts held and maintained by the Bank on
behalf of customers where the Bank acts as an agent in certain transactions.

(¢} Movement of the depositors’ and sukuk holders share of profit payable during the vears ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 i3 as follows:

2013 2012

AED GO AEDT00

(Restated)

Balance at 1 January 143915 100,936
Wakala and other investment denosits from banks (note 42) 439,144 357018
Sukukholders’ accrued/reatised profit on sukuk financing instruments 161,387 182,039
Paid during the vear ‘ {646,598) {6096,978)
Balance at 31 December (note 21 (a)) 97,848 143,915

(d) Movement of provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits during the vears ended
31 December 2015 and 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED000 AED000

{(Restated)

Balance at 1 January 131,666 108,748

Charged during the year {note 38) 22,945 23,747
Paid during the year (561 (829)

Balance at 31 December {note 21 (a)) ‘ 154,059 131,606
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22 Taxation

(a)  Provision for taxation movement during the vears ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

1613 2012

AED 00D ALY 000

{Restated)

Balance at 1 January 3,590 5,346

Charged during the vear {note 22 (c)) 4,685 3,841
Paid during the year (6,2594) {5,652}
Foreign exchange effect 258 {45)

Balance at 31 December (note 21 (2)) 2,239 3,580

(b} Deferred tax asset movement during the vears ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AEDG00 AR 000

{Restated)

Balance at | January 0,749 19,287
Reversed/(charged) during the vear (note 22 {2)) 776 {8,860)
Foreign exchange effect {828 {6ED)
Balance at 31 December (note 14 (2)) 4,691 9,749

{¢} The analysis of income tax expense charged during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is
as follows:

2013 2012

AEDH00 AED 000

{Restated)

Current taxation {note 22(a)) 4,685 3.94]
Dieferred taxation (note 22(b)) (7700 8,860
Total 3918 12,801

23 Zakat payable

The analysis of Zakat payable by the Bank on shareholders’ behalf for the years ended 3| December 2013
and 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012

AED'000 AED'000

(Restated)

Zakat charged to equity atiributable to shareholders of the Parent 163,995 183,541
Zakat adjustment related to previous years - {2.448)
Zakat accounted and paid by investees (1,195) {1,683

Shareholders’ Zakat for the year payable by the Bank 162,800 150,412

Zakat adjustment related to previous years - 2,447

Net Zakat payable by the Bank on sharcholders’ behalf 162.800 161,859

Zakat on depositors’ investment risk reserve (note 17 (¢)) 2,788 1,713

Total Zakat payable 165,588 163,572

T A v
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24 Share capital

As at 31 December 2013, 3,953,751,107 authorised ordinary shares of AED 1 each (2012 (Restated):
3,797,054,290 ordinary shares of AED 1§ each) were fully issued and paid up.

25 Tier 1 sukuk

In March 2013, the Bank through a Shari'a compliant sukuk arvangement issued Tier 1 sukuk amounting
to USD 1,000 miilion (AED 3,673 million) at a par value of USD 1,000 (AED 3,673) per sukuk, Tier |
sukuk was issued as approved by the Bank’s sharchoiders in the Extraordinary General Meeting
conducted on 4 March 2013,

Tier 1 sukuk is a perpetual security in respect of which there is no fixed redemption date and constitutes
direct. unsecured, subordinated obligations (senior only to share capital) of the Bank subject to the terms
and conditions of the Mudaraba Agreement. The Tier | sukuk is listed on the Irish Stock Exchange and
cailable by the Bank after the six-year period ending in March 2019 (the “First Call Date™) or any profit
payment date thereafter subject to certain redemption conditions.

The net proceeds of Tier 1 sukuk are invested by way of Mudaraba with the Bank (as Mudareb) on an
unrestricted co-mingling basis, by the Bank in its general business activities carried out through the
general Mudaraba pool,

Tier 1 sukuk bears an expected profit rate of 6.25% per annum to be paid semi-annually in arrears until
the First Call Date, After that, the expected profit rate will be reset based on then prevailing 6 vear U.S.
Mid Swap Rate plus initial margin of 495.5 basis points.

At the lssuer’s sole discretion, it may elect not to make any Mudaraba profit distributions expected and
the event is not considered an event of default. In such event, the Mudaraba profit will not be
accumulated, If the Jssuer makes a non-payment ¢lection or a non-payment event oeccurs, then the Bank
will not (a) declare or pay any distribution or dividend or make any other payment on, and will procure
that no distribution or dividend or other payment is made on ordinary shares issued by the Bank, or {
directly or indirectly redeem, purchase, cancel, reduce or otherwise acquire ordinary shares issued by the
Bank.

26 Other reserves and treasury shares

{a) The movement of the other reserves during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as

follows:
Ponated  Additional

Statutory General Land paid in - Treasury
reserve reserve reserve capital shares Taotal
AED008 AEDO00  AED000 AEDODD  AED'00O AED'000
Balance at 1 Janusry 2012 {Restated) 2731879 2.350,000 267083 - - 5,348,964
Balance at 31 December 2012 (Restated} ATILETS  2350,000 267,085 - - 5,348,504

Acquisition of non-controlling interest

of Tamweel P.J.5.C. (note 16 (d)} - - - 159,832 (10,884} 148,948

Treasury shares - - - - {2,216) (2,216}

Bualance at 31 December 2013 L7ILETS 2,330,000 267,085 159,832 (13,100) 8,495,696

[ty
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260 Other reserves {continued)

{h)  Statutory reserve:

Article 192 of the U A E. Commercial Companies Law No. (8) of 1984 (as amended) and the Articles of
Association of the Bank, require that 10% of the profit atiributable 1o the sharcholders is transferred to a
non-distributable statutory reserve until this reserve equals 50% of the paid up share capital. This reserve
is not available for distribution other than in circumstances stipulated by law,

‘The Board of Directors has resolved to discontinue the annual transfer to statutory reserve as the current
reserve exceeds 50% of the paid up capital of the Bank.

{c}  General reserve;

Transfer to general reserve is made based on the discretion of the Board of Directors and is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the annual general meeting.

{d) Donated land reserve;

‘The Government of Dubai has donated certain lands which have been allocated for the sole benefit of the
shareholders of the Bank. Such lands are included in investment properties as they are held for capital
appreciation purposes,

(e} Treasury shares:

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Bank acquired 1,603,589 treasury shares at AED 2.2
million.

In addition, 6,046,042 treasury shares amounting to AED 10.9 million were acquired by the Bank as a
result of the Bank’s acquisition of a subsidiary’s non-controlling interests during the year ended
31 December 20113 (note 16 (d)).

27 Investments fair value reserve

2013 2012

AED060 AEDY 000

(Restated)

Balance at | fanuary (817,913 {831,849
Impact of adoption of IFRS 10 & 1t - 2,217
Net unwealised zain on other investments carried at FVTOC) 260,263 11,719
Realized gain transferred to retained camings upon investment disposal {6,200 -
Balance at 31 December {563,850} (R17.913)

28 Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the Bank’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Bank’s presentation currency (i.e. AED) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange translation reserve.
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29
{a)
(b)

Dividends paid and proposed

71

The Board of Directors has proposed 25% cash dividend at their meeting held on 29 January 2014,

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the sharcholders approved and paid a cash dividend of
AED 0.15 per share (fotal dividend AED 569.56 million) at the Annual General Meeting held on
4 March 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the shareholders approved and paid a cash
dividend of AED 0.125 per share (total dividend AED 474,63 million) at the Annual General

Meeting held on 20 March 2012,

3 Conimpent labilities and commitments
(a)  The analysis of contingent Habilitics and commitments as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:
2013 2012
AED* 000 AEDO00
(Restated)
Contingent liabilities:
Leters of puarantee 65,986,202 7,828,148
Letters of credit 3,313,044 1,962 295
Total contingent liabilities 10,299,246 8,790,443
Commitments:
Capital expenditure commitments 903,608 1,082,813
Irrevocable undrawn facilities commitments 13,850,038 10,393,008
Total commitments 14,753,643 §1,475,821
Total contingent labilities and commitments

(b)

Financing-related financial instruments (contingent liabilities):

25,052,889

Financing-related financial instruments include commitments to extend Islamic financing, standby
letters of credit and guarantees which are designed 10 meet the requirements of the Bank's customers.

Commitments to extend Islamic financing represent contraciual commitments to provide Istamic
financing. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates, or other termination clauses and
normally require the payment of a fee. Since commitments may expire without being utilized, the total
contract amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Standby letters of credit and
guarantees commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers contingent upon the failure of
the customer to perform under the tertns of the contract,
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Nates to the conselidated finuncial statements
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31 income from Islamic financing and investing assets

Islamie financing assets
Vehicles murabahat
Commadities murabahat
Real estate murabahat
International murabahat

Total murabahat income

Home finance liarah
Other ljarah

Salamn finance
Istisna’a

Total income from Islamic financing assets
Isiamic Envesting assets

Musharakat

Mudarabat

Wakalat

Total income from Islamic investing assets

Total income from Estamic financing and investing assets

2013 2012
AED080 AED 000
(Restated)

350,508 382,178
249,213 265,408
162,697 173.638
12,342 7,843
774,168 829,157
583,018 616,161
541,628 487.095
6il 116 436,718
219,438 318122
2,731,344 2,687,253
321,200 336,655
166,550 149,429
129,336 73,059
617,086 579,143
3,348,430 3,266,396

Income from financing and investing assets is presented net of forfeited income of AED 3.4 million (2012

(Restated): AED 2.4 million).

32 Income from International murabahat and wakala, short term

Income from international murabahat with central bank of the U.ALE.
Income from investment and wakala deposits
Income from international murabahat from banks and financial institutions

Total

33 Gain from other investments at fair value, pet

Dividend income and other returns from investments measured at FVTOCE
Realized gain on disposal of investments measured ai FYTPL

Dividend income from investments desipnated at FYTPL

Unrealized gain/{loss on revaluation of investments measured at FVTPL

Total

2613 012
AED 000 AED’000
{Restated)

65,008 33,582
22,708 19 891
7,958 4,684
95,674 58,157
20313 2012
AED'600 AED000
{Restated)

26,210 19,775
1.677 i,514

6d 1258
15 (64)
21,966 22,483

Dividend income is presented net of forfeited income of AED 2.9 million (2012 (Restated): AED 4.2

million).



Dubai Islamic Bank P.J5.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued}

34 Commissions, fees, and foreign exchange income

Tradé related commission and fees
Foreign exchange income

Asgset and wealth managernent related fees
Fair value of Islamic derivatives

Other commissions and fees

Total

35 Income from investment properties

73

2013 2012
ABRGH0 AEDOO0
{Restated)

283,515 218,211
70,186 75,014
22,189 07.924
4,293 2,179
388,671 386,086
708,854 780,014

Income from investment properties represents the net rental income recognized by the Bank from ifs

investinent properties during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,

36 Encome from properties held for sule, net

Sales proceeds
Less: cost of sale (note 12(bY)

Net gains from sale of properties
tncome from cangellation of properties sale contracts

Total

37 Other income

Realized gain on disposal of investinents in Islamic sukuk
Services income, net

(Loss)/gain on disposal of associates and joint ventures (note 11 (p))

Net (loss)/zain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sale of subsidiary (note 16 (k)
Other

Total

2013 2012
AED 000 AED 600
(Restated)
527,438 292,076
(405,221) {268,64%)
122,217 23,434
110,947 103,958
233,164 217,392
2013 2012
AEDD0D AED 000
(Restated)
67,122 37,058
25,436 62,991
(33,636) 4791
(7.289) 351
27,679 3,375
6,193 66,248
65,525 174 814
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38 Personnel expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Staff terminal benefits (note 21 (d))
Share based payiments

Total

32 General and administrative expenses

Premises and cquipment maintenance costs
Administrative expenses

Rental charees under operating leases
Communication costs

Printing and stationery

Other operating expenses

Total

40 Impairment loss on fisancial assets, net

Provision for Islamic financing and investing assets charged (note § (b))
Provision for Islamic financing and investing assets released (note 8 (b))
Net provision for receivables and other assets {note 14 (b))

Other provisions

Total

74

41 (Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses on non-financial assets, net

(Reversal ofadditional impairment of properties held for sale (rote 12 (b))
Impairment of investment properties (note 13 (a))
Impairment of investiment in associates and joint ventures (note | 1{n))

Total

2013 2012
AED 00 AED'000
{Restated)

1,028.214 041,963
22 945 23,747

- 551
1,651,159 066,263
2013 2012
AEDR000 AED 000
{Restated)

24,019 131,902
96,700 82,903
72,241 71,597
721,529 71,617
7,631 7,024
158,327 153,331
302,356 518,434
2013 2012
AEP*G00 AEDFO00
(Restated)

1,153,085 1,163,674
{301 458) (279,280
68,432 a4 407

- 43,832

920,062 o712 633
2013 2012
AED000 AED000
{Restated)

(150,000) 73,169
24,504 13,960
29,852 33,4495
(95,944} 120,624
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42 Depositors® and sukuk holders® share of profit

Investment and savings deposits from customers (note 17 (d))

Wakala and other investment deposits from banks (note 21 ()

sukukholders® accrued/realised profit on sukuk financing instruments
(note 21 {¢))

Total

43 Basic and diluted earnings per share

75

2013 2012
AETY 000 AED000
{Restated)

453,300 612,542
439,144 557,918
161,387 182,039
1,053,831 1,352,499

(2}  Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Parent, net of directors’ remuneration and profit attributable to Tier 1 sukukholders
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Parent (AED*000)
Profit attributable to Tier | sukukholders
Directors’ remuneration (AED000)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (*000)

Basic and diluted eamings per share (AED per share)

2013 2012
AED'BOG AED000
{Restated)
1,610,939 1,150,672
{114,781) -
(5,350) {5,350}
1,490,808 1,144,722
3,894,478 3,797,054
AED 0.38

AED 0.30

(b}  As of the reporting date, the diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share as the
Bank has not issued any financial instruments that should be taken into consideration when the

diluted earnings per share is calculated.

44 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with the central banks (note 6 (a)
Pue from banks and financial institutions (note 7 (a))

Less: Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions
with original maturity over 3 months

Balanee at 31 Necember

2013 2012

AED*000 AED(00
{Restated)

22.712.964 15,473,999

0,606,168 3,293,050

32,319,132 18,767,058
(14,950,000)  (8,218,972)

17,369,132

10,548,086
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45  Reluted party teansactions
(a) The Bank enters into tramsactions with shareholders, associates, directors, key management
personnel and their velated concerns in the ordinary course of business at commercial profit and
commission rates.
{b) As at 31 December 2013, the major shareholder of the Bank is lnvestment Corpotation of Dubai
("ICD”), a company in which the Government of Dubai is the majority shareholder,
Deposits from and financing to Investment Corporation of Dubai refated-entities, other than those
that have been individually disclosed below, amount to 3.34% of the Bank’s twtal customers’
deposits (2012 (Restated): 3.1%), 10.5% of the Bank’s total Islamic financing and investing assets
{2012 (Restated): 10.6%), and 22.8% of the Bank’s total due fiom banks and financial institutions
(2012 (Restated): 49.7%). These entities are independently run business entities, and all financial
dealings with the Bank are on an armg-length basis,
{c) Balances and transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Bank, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.
(d} The significant balances outstanding at 31 December 2013 and 2012 in respect of related parties
included in these consolidated financial statements are as follows:
Directors Associates
and key and joint
Major management ventures
shareholders personnel Total
AED'000 ARTY 000 AED'000 AED000
2013
Islamic financing and investing assets 1,501,634 50,921 5,964 1,648,519
Customers’ deposits 3,021,698 40,955 14,883 3,077,533
Income from Islamic financing and investing assets 48,441 3,847 2,261 24,549
Depositors® share of profits 73,405 170 - 73,878
Contingent habilities - 6 14,128 14,126
2012 (Restated)
Istamic financing and investing assets 1,469,201 61,038 38,393 1,588,632
Customers' deposits 1,884,551 83,198 7,831 1,975,580
Income from islarnic financing and investing assets 42,608 3,383 6,336 54,347
Depositors’ share of profity 34,646 1,982 - 36,628
Contingent labitities - ] 14,078 14,084
(e} No impairment aflowances have been recognized against Islamic financing and investing assets
extended to related parties or contingent Habilities issued in favor of refated parties during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
() The compensation paid to key management personnel of the Bank is as follows:
2013 2012
AED000 AED000
{Restated)
Salaries and other benefits, including directors’ remuneration 22,214 20,779

Ermployvee terminal benefils 3,099 3,233
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46  Segmental information

Reportable segments

{a) Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports about comnponents of the Bank that
are regularly reviewed by the chiel operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance.

The Bank’s reporting sepments are organised into five major business segments as follows;

- Retail and business banking:

- Corporate and investment banking:

- Real estate;

- Treasury:

« Other:

Principally handling small and medium businesses and individual
customers”  deposits, providing conswmer and  commercial
murabahats, [jarah, islamic card and funds transfer facilities and
trade finance facilities.

Principally handling financing and other credit facilities and deposit
and current accounts for corporate and institutional customers and
investment banking services,

Property development and other real estate investments.

Principally responsible for managing the Bank’s overall lquidity
and market risk and provide treasury services to customiers.
Treasury also run its own lslamic Sukuk portfolio and specialise
financial instruments book to manage the above risk,

Functions other than above core lines of businesses.

{b) The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Bank’s accounting policies
described in note 4 to these consolidated financial statements.

(¢} Transactions between segments are conducted at estimated profit rates which approximate to market

rates on an arm’s length basis.

(d) Segment profit represents the profit eamned by each segment without allocation of income tax
expense. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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46 Segmental information (continued)

Geagraphical information

(g)  Although the management of the Bank is based primarily on business segments, the Bank operates
in two geographic markets: inside the U.AE. which is designated as domestic and outside the
U.ALE. which is derignated as international.

(h) The following table show the distribution of the Bank’s external gross income and non-current

assets allocated based on the location of the operating centres for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012:

Gross ncome from

external enstomers * MNon-current aysets **

2013 2012 2013 2013

AEDF000 ALD000 AED (000 AEDO00

(Restated) {Restated)

Within the ULAE. 4,938,901 4,905,170 1,965,331 2,030,817
Cutside the U AE, 271,493 325,846 584,950 641,610
Total 3,210.3%4 5,251,016 2,550,281 2,672 487

e v ey [UBEFLE S LA LT T A - ——o—om—men

* Gross income from external customers geographical analysis is based on the Bank’s operating centres
and subsidiaries locations.

*% Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, investments in associates and joint ventures and
deferred tax assets,

Revenie from mujor products and services

(i)  Revenue from major products and services are disclosed in notes 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

47  Islamic derivatives financial instruments

(&) The table below shows the positive and negative fair values of Islamic derivative financial
instruments, which are equivalent to the market values, together with the notional amounts anatysed
by the term to maturity. The notional amount is the amount of an Islamic derivative’s underlying
asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in the value of 1slamic derivatives
are measured, The potional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at year end
and are neither indicative of the market risk nor credit risk,
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47 Islamic derivatives financial instruments (continued)
Notional amounts by ferm to maturity
Positive  Negative  Notiona Over 3 Over 1 Cver
fair value  fair valne  amount Within 3  months to Ve o Is Over
{note 14)  {note 21) total months T year 3 vears Yearg H years
AEDGH0  ARIDOS0  AREDRAGD  AED000 AEDOGD  AEDO0D  AED'OO0G  AEDDO
2013
Istamde Derfvatives
feld for fracing:
Linilaters] promise
1o buy/sell currencies 16,522 10,436 904,723 5,343,898 4,360,833 - - -
Islamic profit rate swaps 10,519 - R379,778 - - 3041478 1673300 665,000
Total 21,041 10,136 15,084,501 5,343,890 4,360,833 3041478 1,673,300 665,000
2012 (Restabed)
Islamic Derfearives
held for trading:
Unilateral promise
to bua/sell currencics 20,830 27963 12048647 4,656,238 7.362,260 - - -
Istarmic profit rate swaps 11,458 - RI123476 - s LB49.BB0 2473296 3N0000
Total 41,288 27963 17,141,823 4636380 7362206 2349880 247329 300,064
(b) Disclosures concerning the fair value of Islamic derivatives are provided in risk management note
below.
(¢)  The Bank has positions in the following types of Islamie derivatives;

Unilateral Pronvse to buy/sell currencies

Unilateral promises to buy/sell currencies are promises to either buy or sell a specified cwrency at a
specific price and date in the future. The actual transactions are executed on the value dates, by
exchanging the purchasefsale offers and acceptances between the relevant parties and delivering
{exchanging) the relevant currencies on spot basis.

Islamic Swaps

Islamic Swaps are based on a Waa’d (promise) structure between two parties to buy a specified
Sharia‘a compliant commmodity at an agreed price on the relevant date in fiture. It is a conditional
promise to purchase a commodity through a unilateral purchase undertaking. Islamic swap structure
comprises profit rate swap and currency swap. For Islamic profit rate swaps, counterparties generally
exchange fixed and floating rate profit payments by executing the purchase/sale of commodity under
“Murabsha Sale Agreement” in a single currency. For Islamic currency swaps, fixed or floating profit
payments as well as cost of underlying commodity are exchanged in different currencies, by executing
the purchase/sale of commodity under “Murabaha Sale Agreement”,
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48  Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

82

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Bank’s assets and liabilities analysed according to
when they are expected 1w be recovered or settled,

2013

Assets;
Cash and balances with
central banks
Pue from banks and financial
institutions
Islamic financing and
Investing asseis, net
Investment in Islamic sukuk
Other investments at fair value
[nvestments in associates
and joint ventures
Properties heid for sale
Investiment properties
Receivables and other asseiy
Property, plant and equipment

Total assels

Liabifities and equity:
Customers® deposits
e to banks and

financial institutions
Sukuk financing instruments
Medium term wakala finance
Payables and other liabilities
Zakat payable
Equity

Total Hiabilities and equity

l.ess than 1 month to 3 months 1 vear to Over 5
one month 3 months to 1 year 8 years years Taotal
AEIYOM AED 000 AEDQ08  AED'000 AED'ORD  AED0OD
2,930,618 4,705,886 9,967,747 108,793 - 22,712,964
8,547,845 695,820 362,303 - - 9,606,168
3,108,033 4,563,855 B.B79,252 26,794,616 12,635,881 56,070,638
17,866 20,105 1,511,341 B, 400,044 1,693,197 11,642,553
“ - 1,066,155 963,502 - 1,029,657
- - - - 1,877,829 1,877,829
- - - 1,840,973 - 1,840,973
- - - - 013314 2,013,314
41,457 398,057 1,034,312 3,483,168 385 4,987,374
- . - 228,173 348,795 536,968
14,735,819 15,383,638 22,821,310 41,818,269 18529402 113,288,438
14,270,542 13,096,110 32,670,132 20,932 861 70,886 79,060,541
1,498,918 558,018 84,487 488,583 - 2,630,006
- - = 2,807,603 - 2,807,603
7.430,842 1,422,053 2,953,928 475,688 - 12,282,511
- - 163,588 - - 165,558
- - 593,063 (R63,850) 16,312,976 16,342,189
23,200,302 24,160,885 16,383,872 113,288,438

13,076,181

36,467,198
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48  Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (continued)

2042 (Restated)

Assets:
Cash and balances with central
banks
Eue from banks and financial
institutiong
[slamic financing and
investing assers, net
Investment in Islamic sukuk
Other investments 2 fair value
Investments In associates
and joint ventures
Properties held for sale
tnvestment properties
Receivables and other assets
Property, plant and equipment

Total assels

Liabilities and equity:
Custormers” deposits
DPoe 1o banks and

financial tnstitutions
Sukuk financing instruments
Medium term wakala finance
Pyabales and other Habilities
Zakat payable
Equity

Total linbilities and equity

83

Legs than [ manthto 3 monthsfo 1 vearto 3 Over 8
one month 3 months 1 year years yEATS Total
AEDOR0 AED'000 AED'000 AED'O08  AED'000  AED'BOQ
3,061,994 4,096,076 8,218,972 96,957 - 15,473,999
2,330,930 922,109 20,000 - - 3,293,059
2,867,061 4,907,189 8,964,298 24374219 14,069,941 55,182,638
23,853 22,104 2,187,964 7998564 B55.877 11,088,662
- - 611,970 1,369,062 - 1,981,032
- - - - 2029953 2,029,553
- - - 1,997,374 - 1.997.374
n - . - 2,083,010 1083010
[RERIN 33,536 3,917,437 803,639 L3730 4,891,938
- . - 256,430 333,047 589,477
419770 10,601,014 23920661 36,896,565  19.373,201 98,611,212
6,831,035 9218177 28,266,824  22,330.684 78,803 66,725,523
386,631 173,229 3,504,515 2,403,605 - 6,668,000
634,960 - 1,500,000 2,939,000 - 4,673,960
. . = 3,752,543 - 3,752,543
1,201,408 1,128,317 1,961,594 641,679 702 4,934,700
- - 163,572 - - 163,372
- - 565,558 (B20,131y 11943487 11,692,214
9,254,054 10,520,723 35,566,063 31247380 12.022992 98,611,212
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49  Financial instruments classifieation

The tabie below sets out the Bank’s classification of each class of Gnancial assets and labilities and their
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

Fair Fair value
value through Amortised Carrying
through profit or cost amoent

OCT loss
2013 AEDF000 AEDO0) AED OG0 AED’O00

Financtal assers

Cash and balances with central banks . - 22,712,964 22,712,964
Due from banks and financial institutions - - 2,606,168 9,606,168
Islamic financing and investing assets, net . - 56,070,638 56,070,638
Investment in Islamic sukok measured at amortised cost - - 11,642,553 11,642,553
Other investments at fair valoe 2,028,867 79 - 2029657
Recefvables and other asscts - 21,041 4,802,962 4,824,003

21,831 104,838,285 106,885,983

prostia st b UL RO T

Flanclal Babiliies

Customers® deposits w - 74,060,541 70,000,541
Due to banks and financial instittions . - 2,030,006 2,630,006
Sukuk financing instruments - - 21,807,603 2,807,603
Medium term wakala finance - . “ -
Payables and other liabilities - 10,136 12,044,930 12,085,066

- 10,136 96,543,080 96,583,216

2012 (Restated)
Financlal assers
Cash and balances with cemtral banks - - 15,473,999 15,473,999
Pue from banks and financial insticutions ' - - 3,203,059 3,293,039
Islamic financing and investing assets, net - - 55,182,688 55,182,688
Investment in Islamic sultuls measured at amortised cost - - 11,088,662 11,088,667
Other investments at fr value 1,979,500 1,132 - 1,981,032
Receivables and other assets - 41,288 4,720,504 4,770,882
1,979,800 42,420 89,768,002  ©1,790,322
Financial liabitities
Customers’ deposits - - 66,725,523 66,725,523
Dute to banks and (inancial institutions - . 6,668,000 6,668 060
Sukok financing instraments - - 4,673,960 4,673,960
Medium term wakala finance - - 3,752,543 3,752,543
Payables and other Habilities - 27,963 4,753,698 4,781,661

- 27,963 86,373,724 86,601,687

== At

Tt L A
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30 Fair value of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Bank determines the fair value of various financial assets
and financial Habilities,

(#) Fair value of the Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on 2 recurring basis

All of the Bank’s financial assets and financial Habilities, which are reported at their fair value in these
consolidated financial statements, are measured at fair value at end of each reporting period. The fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

o Fair value of all quoted other investment measured at fair vafue through profit or loss and at fair
value through other comprehensive income (note 10) are based on guoted price in an active market
{unadjusted);

¢ Fair value of all unquoted other investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
theome (note 10} are mainly based on net asset value of the investees on measurement dates. The net
asset value is unobservable input and the Bank has determined that the reported net asset value
represents the fair value at end of the reporting period; and

o  Fair value of all Islamic derivatives financial instruments (Sharia compliant profit rate swap and
unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies) is based on present value calculation of the estimated
future cash flows. Future cash flows are estimated based on forward profit rates and/or exchange
rates (from observable yield curves and/or forward exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period) and contract profit and/or forward rates, present valued at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.

The table below summarises the Bank’s financial instruments fair value according to fair value hierarchy:

2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AEDG00 AED'G00 AED*000 AED (0
Cileer investoents measurad o fair valne
Investments designated at fair value through
profit or lass
Quoted equity instrumenty Tl - - 790

Investments carrvied at fair value through other
comprebensive income

Quoted equity instruments 858,638 - - 838,635
Unquoted equity instruments - - 930,423 D30.423
Unquoted investment funds - - 239,806 239,806
Qther assers

Islamic derivative assets - 25,041 - 21,041
Total financial assets measured at fair value 21,041 1,170,228 2,050,698
Orher Habilitiey

Islamic derivative liabilities - 10,136 - 10,134
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80  Fair value of financial instraments {(continued)

{a) Fair value of the Banl's financial assets and financial fHabilides that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

2012 (Restated)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
AED000 AED'000 AED'Q00 ARLY000
Cher invesrments measured of fair value
Investments designated ai fair value through
profit or loss

Quaoted equity instruments 1,132 - - 1,132
Invesiments carried at fair value through other

eomprehensive income
Quoted equity instruments 610,838 - - 610,838
Unquoted equity instruments - - 980,377 Qa0,577
Unguoted investment funds - - 378,485 378,483
Wher assels
{slamic derivative assets - 41,288 - 41,288
Total financial assets measured at fajr value 611,970 41,288 1,360,062 2,022,320
Other Habilitles

Islamic derivative liabilities - 27,963 - 27,963

E R T A R PR A s T L 2T (NPT DN

The fair values of the financial assets included in the level 2 and level 3 catepories above have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on the present value of future
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inpuis being the applicable rate that reflects the credit risk of
counferparties.

There were no transfers between Level ¥ and 2 duning the vears ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,

(b) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

20813 2012

AEDO00 AED'000

(Restated)

Balance atl Janvary 1,369,062 1,447,628
Losses in other comprehensive income (46,235) (72,843)
Reclassified from investment in subsidiaries - 19,335
Reclassified to investment in associates and joint ventures (54,662) -
Purchased during the year - 4,591
Disposed during the year {97,936) {29,649)

Balance at 31 December 1,170,22% 1,369,062

gttt ety
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50  Fair valoe of financial instruments (continucd)
(¢}  Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Except as detatled in the following table, the management considers that the carrying amounts of financial

assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statement approximate their fair
values.

Carrying Fair value
amouni Loevel 1 Level 2 fevel 3 Fotal
2013 AED6G0 AER 000 AED000 AED800 AEDH00
Finencial assels:
Investinents in Ishamic sukuk 11,642,553 11,134,876 - 856,177 12,018,783

Financial Habilities:

Sukuk financing mstruoments 2,807,603 2,071,687 - n 2,971,687
2012 {Restated)

Financial assels:

investments in Istamic suluk 11,088,662 8,770,301 - 3,690,630 12,460,931
Financial abilities:

Sukuk financing instruments 4,673,960 4 885,005 - - 4,885,995

51  Risk management
(a} Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Bank's activities but it {s managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls, This process of risk management
is critical to the Bank's continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the
risk exposures relating to his responsibilities.

The Bank is exposed to various risks including:

- Credit risk,

- Liguidity risk,

- Market risk, and

- Operational risk,

The mdependent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry, They are monitored through the Bank’s strategic plarning process.

i Risk management stracture

The Board of Directors, supported by the Risk Management Committee and Risk Management
Department, is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks; however, there are separate
independent bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the
risk strategies and policies.
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51 Risk mapagement (continued)
{a} Introducition {continned)
i Risk management structure (continued)

Board Risk Management Committee

The Board Risk Manapement Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk
strategies, frameworks, policies and limits, and for recommending these strategies and policies to the
Board of Directars. It is responsible for the fundamental risk issues, and manages and monitors relevant
risk decisions.

Rigk Management Comumitice

The day-to-day management of risk has been delegated to Risk Management Committee which is headed
by tire Chief Executive QOfficer ("CEO™).

The Risk Management Committee has the overall responsibility to support the Board Risk Management
Committee for the development and formulation of the risk strategy, frameworks, policies and limits. It is
responsible for ensuring the compliance with all risk limits, monitoring visk exposures and implementing
the regulatory guidelines issued by the regulatory bodies (e.g. The Central Bank of the U.ALE.).

Risk Management Department

The Risk Management Department is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related
procedures to ensure pisk remains within the acceptable range as approved by the Board Risk
Management Committee and the Board of Directors. The departmient is responsible for credit approval,
credit administration, portfolio management, credit risk, market risk, operational risk and overall risk
control.

Asset and Liability Management Conunitice

Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”) is responsible for managing the Bank’s assets and
liabilities and the overall financial structure. 1t is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity
risks of the Banle.

Baak Internal Andit Department

Risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited periodically by the Bank Internal Audit
Department which examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Bank’s compliance with the
procedures. Internal Audit Bank Departient comments the results of their assessments with management,
and reports its findings and recommendations to the Bank’s Audit Committee.
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51  Risk management (continued)
(a} Introduction {continued)

i Risk measuvement and reporting systems

The Bank measures riske using conventional qualitative methods for credit, market liquidity and
operational risks. Further, the Bank also uses quantitative analysis and methods to support revisions in
business and risk strategies as and when required. These analysis and methods reflect both the expected
loss likely to arise in normal course of business or unexpected losses in an unforeseen event based on
simple statistical techniques and probabilities derived from historical experience. The Bank also runs
stress scenarios that would arise in the event that extreme events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact,
aeeur,

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Board of
Directors and management. These Hmits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the
Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected
industries.

Information compiled from all the busmesses is examined and processed in order to analyse the risk
profile and identify early risks. This information is presented and explained 1o the management,
management committees, Board Risk Management Committee, and the Risk Management Commitiee.
Specialized reports are presented to the pertinent heads of business and arve delivered with a frequency
suited 10 the volatility of the risk. The report includes aggregate credit exposure, limit exceptions,
liquidity, operational loss incidents and other risk profile changes. On a monthly basis, detailed veporting
of industry, customer and geographic risks takes place, Senior management assesses the appropriateness
of the provision for impairment losses on a quarterly basis,

iil, Risk mitigation

As part of its overall risk management, the Bank uses various methods to manage exposures resulting
from changes in credit risks, liquidity risks, market nisks (including profit rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
and equity price risk), and operational risks.

The Bank seeks to manage its credit risk exposures through diversification of financing and investing
activities 1o avoid undue concentration of risk with individuals and groups of customers in specific
locations or businesses. The Bank actively uses collateral to reduce its credit risks.

In order to guard against liquidity risk, management has diversified funding sources and assels are
managed with overall Bank lguidity in consideration maintaining a healthy balance of liquid assets {i.e.
cash and cash equivalents).

The market risks are managed on the basis of predetermined asset allocation across various asset
categories and continuous appraisal of market conditions for movement and expectation of foreign
currencies rate, bench mark profit rates and equity houses.

To manage all other risks, the Bank has developed a detailed risk management framework to identify and
apply resources to mitigate the risks.

iv. Risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their abitity
to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to developments
affecting a particular industry or geographical location.
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51 Risk management (continued)
(b) Credit risk

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Bank’s policies and procedures include specific
guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
comtrotled and managed accordingly.

Credit risk measurement

The Banl assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating tools tailored
10 the various catepories of counterparties. Whilst some of the models for assessment of Real Estate
projects are internally developed, others for the Corporate, Contracting and SME businesses have been
acquired from Moody's and calibrated to the Bank’s internal rating seale. The models are housed with the
Moody’s Risk Analyst rating tool.

The rating tools are kept under review and upgraded as necessary. The Bank regularly validates the
performance of the rating and their predictive power with regard to default events,

Collateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate eredit risk. The most traditional of these is
the taking of securittes for facilities provided, which is a common practice. The Bank implements
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal
collateral types for Islamic financing and investing assets arg:

« Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

+ Corporate guarantees;

+ Charges over business assets such as premises, machinery, vehicles and inventory; and
¢ Charges over financial instruments such as deposits and equity investments.

Islamic derivative financial instrivnents

Credit risk arising from Islamic derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with
pasitive fair values, as recorded in the consolidated financial position.

Creditrelated commitments risks

The Bank makes available to its customers guarantees and letters of credit which require that the Bank
makes payments in the event that the customer fails to fulfill certain obligations to other parties. This
exposes the Bank to a similar risk to Islamic financing and investing assets and these are mitigated by the
same control processes and policies.
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51 Risk management (continued)

{B)  Credit risk {coniinued)

21

i Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit

eohancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset, including Islamic
derivatives. The maximum exposure (s shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of

master netting and cotlateral agresments.

Gross Grogs

maximam maximum

expasure SXPasuTE

2013 M2

AEDB0D AEDO0D

{Restated)

Balances with central banks 20,971,872 13,742,415

Due from banks and financial institutions 9,606,168 3,293,059

[slamic financing and jnvesting assets 60,043,911 58,882,110

Invesiment in Islamic sukuk measured at amortised cost 11,642,553 11,088,662

Other investments at fair value 2,029,657 1,981,032

Receivables and other assets 5,527,422 5372670

110,421,683 94,359,948

Contingent liabilities 10,299,244 9,788,727

Commifments 14,743,643 H1,475,821

Total 135,474,572 115,625496
il Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk

Coneentration of risk is manmuged by client/counterparty, by geopraphical region and by industry sector.
The Bank’s financial assets, before taking il account any collateral held or other cradit enhancements

can be analysed by the following geographical regions:

Retail and
business Wholesale
hasnking hanking Total
AED006 AED000 AED'060
2013
The ULA.E. 3,168,218 97,007,518 128,165,736
Other Gull Cooperation Council (GCC) countries - 1,378,244 1,378,244
South Asia 434,739 1497333 2,031,962
Europe - 2,370,057 2.370,057
Alfrica - 304,512 304,512
Cithar “ 324,061 324,061
Total 0,602,957 104,871,615 135,474,572

R IR T R D G RS0
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51 Risk management {confinved)

{h)  Credit visk (continucd)

ii.  Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk (continued)

2012 (Restated)

Hetail and

92

business ‘Wholcsale
hanking banking Total
AED'000 AEDO00 AED000
The 1LAE. 26,676,833 82,706,024 109,382 837
Other Guif Cooperation Conncil (GCC)Y eoumries - 2,172,038 2,172,038
Sonth Asia 420,184 2,118,716 2,338,500
Europe 3,866 DoG,403 994,271
Africa - 292,603 292,603
Other 70 244757 244,827
Total 27,100,953 88,524,543 115,625 406

An industry sector analysis of the Bank’s financial assets, before taking into account collateral held or

other credit enhancements, is as tollows:

Gross maximum exposyre

2613 2012

AED 000 AED 000

(Restated)

Financial Institutions 39,534,274 24,893,794

Resl estale 31,308,079 31,049,256

Manufacturing and services 21,296,628 16,879,112

Consumer financing 16,606,774 14,089,656

Consumer home finance 11,702,178 13,500,828

Government 5,287,423 0,606,547

Trade 9,679,216 3,597,303
Total 138,474,572

115,625,496

pit Coltateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

e For commercial Islamic financing and investing facilities, charges over real estate properties,
inventory, leased assets and trade receivables, and

e For retail Islamic financing and investing facilities, charge over assets and mortgages over
properties.

The Bank also obtains guarantees from parent companies for Islamic financing and investing assets granted
to their subsidiaries, but the benefits are not included in the above table.
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51  Risk management (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

iv.  Credit quality per class of financial assets (continned)

Credit risk exposure of the Bank’s financial asseis for each internal risk rating

Moody’s Total Total
equivalent 2013 2012
oradex AED 000 AED'000
{ Restated)
Low visk
Risk rating cless 1 Aaa 24,158,145 17,335,102
Risk reting classes 2 oand 3 Azl-A3 25,849,242 18,492,272
Fair risk
Risk rating class 4 Baal-Baa3 27,434,591 20,662,823
Risk rating classes 5 and 6 Bal-B3 38,973,653 35,699,165
Risk rating class 7 Canl-Caal 11,429,696 14,701,539
High risk
Risk rating classes 8§ foll 7,637,245 8,734,595

135,474,572 115,625,496

It is the Bank's policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio. This
factlitates focused management of the applicable risks and the comparison of financing exposures across
all lines of business, geographic regions and products. The rating system is supported by a variety of
financial analytics, combined with processed market nformation to provide the main inpuis for the
measurement of counterparty risk. All internal risk ratings are tailored to the various categories and are
derived i accordance with the Bank’s rating policy. The attributable risk ratings are assessed and
updated regularly. The Moody’s equivalent grades are relevant only for certain of the exposures in each
risk rating class.

v.  Impairment assessment

The main considerations for the impairment assessment include whether any payments of principal or
profit are overdue by more than 90 days (in line with the U A.E. Central Bank guidelines) or there are any
known difficulties in the cash flows of counterparties, credit rating downgrades, or infringement of the
ariginal terms of the contract, The Bank addresses impairment assessment in two areas: individually
assessed allowances and collectively assessed allowances.

Tadividually assessed allowances

The Bank determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant Islamic financing or
investing asset on an individual basis. Hems considered when determining allowance amounts include the
sustainabifity of the counterparty’s business plan, its ability to improve performance once a financial
difficulty has arisen, projected receipts and the expected dividend payout should bankruptcy ensue, the
availability of other financial support and the realisable value of collateral, and the timing of the expected
cash flows, The impairment tosses are evaluated at each reporting date, unless unforeseen circumstances
require more carelul attention.
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51  Risk management (continued)
(b Credit risk {vontinued)

v.  Impairment assessment (continued)

Collectively assessed allowances

Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on Islamic financing and investing assets that are not
individually significant (including Islamie credit cards, vehicles murabahas, and unsecured retail
financing and investing assets) where there is not yet objective evidence of individual impairment,
Allowances are evaluated on each reporting date with each portfolio receiving a separate review.

The collective assessment takes account of impairment that is likely to be present in the portfolio even
though there is ot yet oblective evidence of the impairment in an individual assessment. Dmipaiment
losses are estimated by taking into consideration the following information: historical losses on the
portfolio, current economic conditions, the approximate delay between the time a loss is likely to have
been incurred and the time it will be identified as reguiring an individually assessed tmpairment
allowance, and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired. The hnpairment allowance is reviewed by
credit management to ensure alignment with the Bank™s overall policy.

Acceptances and contingent liabilities are assessed and provisions made in a similar manner as for istamic
financing and investing assets.

(¢} ELiquidity risk and fimding management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due
under normal and stress circumstances, To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding
sources in addition to its core deposit base, manages assets with Hquidity in mind, and monitors future
cash flows and lquidity on a dafly basis. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the
availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liguidated in the
event of an unforeseen interruplion of cash flow. The Bank also has committed lines of credit that it can
access to meel Hauidity needs. In addition, the Bank maintains statutory deposits with the central banks.
The liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to
stress factors relating to both the market in general and specifically to the Bank.

The high quality of the asset portfolio ensures its lguidity and coupled with the Bank’s own funds and
“gvergreen” customer deposits help form a stable funding source. Even under adverse conditions, the
Bank has access to the funds necessary 1o cover customer needs and meet its funding requirements,

The primary tool for monitoring liquidity is the maturity mismatch analysis, which is monitored over
successive time bands and aeross functional currencies, Guidelines are established for the cumulative
negative cash flow over successive thme bands.
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81  Risk management {continued)
{¢) Liguidity risk and funding management (contnued)
i Liguidity risk mansgement process

The Bank’s Hguidity risk management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by 2
separate team in Bank's Treasury department, includes:

= Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be
met. This inclndes replenishment of funds as they mature or are financed by customers;

*  Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be lquidated as protection against
any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

e Monitoring financial position louidity ratios aganst internal and regulatory requircments; and

®  Managing the concentration and profile of Islamic financing and investing exposures maturities,

Based on the interpal guidelines, the Houidity ratios af the end of each quanter during the year were as
follows:

Mareh June September December
2013 42% 35% 29% 36%
2012 (Restated) 2% 25% 23% 22%

it.  Funding approach

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by management to maintain a wide diversification by
currency, geography, provider, product and term.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Bank issued Tier | sukuk AED 3,673 million (USD 1,000
million) sukuk to diversify sources of funding to support business growth going forward (note 25),

iti. Non-derivative casl flows

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the gross cash flows of the Bank’s financial assets and
linbilities as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual gross
cash flows, whereas the Bank manages the inherent Hquidity risk based on expected gross cash flows,

Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately, However,
the management expects that many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date the Bank
could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by the Bank's
deposit retention history,
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81 Risk management (continued)

(¢}  Liquidity risk and funding management (continued)

iti. Non-derivative cash flows (continued)

2013

Balances with central  banks

Dnte fromm banks and {inanelal
ingtitutions

Islamie financing and
mvesting aegets, net

Tnvestrment 10 Islamie sukuk

Other investments gt By valoe

Receivables and other sgsets

Total assets

Customers' doposits

Due to benks and ather
financial inatitutions

Sultuk financing instruments

Mredium term wakala finanes

Pavables and other fiabilities

Zakat pryable

Total Hahilitics

2012 (Restated)

Balances with ceniral banks

Due from banks and finaneial
instittions

istamic financing and investing
asscls, net

Investment in Islamie sukuk

Other investments at fair value

Reeeivables and other asseis

Total nasets

Customenrs” deposits

Dae to banks and other
finaneial institntions

Sulatk financing instrements

Medium term wakala finence

Payables and other ligbilites

Lakat pavable

Total liabilities

98

.54 than 3 months to Ltad Over 5
O demand 3 months 1 year yours yeary Totul
AEROH0 AEDH(A0 AEDDO0 ALDR0) AEDDGA AED'000
2,570,699 5,860,116 9,997 346 - - 18,428,167
4,729,651 8,864,985 " - - 13,594,636
4,282,666 6,947,695 2,308,187 11,854,046 19,160,096 71,636,624
17,566 23,752 1,658,968 9,594,802 2,280,515 13,675,903
- - 1,062,508 947,264 - 2089717
76,164 664,114 L141,7172 3,045,867 - 537402
11,671,046 22354671 F3,.258,28] 46,091,984 21,440,611 124,822,593
14,437,148 13,241,126 340935559 22,033,867 70,895 82,720,895
1498918 558,018 04,082 “ - 2,347,018
- - 28,411 3,404,278 - 3,522 681
TAFLI05 1,429,319 21,660,428 348,205 - 12,075,157
- - 105,588 “ - 165,568
233732711 13,228,463 37,880,368 216,078,342 0,895 100,631,339
323,765 4,186,484 8,240,797 97,313 - 15,648,361
328,113 2,745,152 10,000 . - 3,203,265
S.6813,187 10,358,216 0,494 010 25,669,199 21804,536 73.8190,148
5,205 40,879 2,218,941 0,086,142 1,119,821 13,369,078
" . 641,970 1,552,326 - 2,164,296
123,874 66,875 1,787,507 3,120,920 2151 5,101,927
9.304,234 17,397,606 22,371,225 41,425,902 2L.9%7,108 113,516,075
23,140,284 18,263,248 11,247,196 17,168,237 79,095 69,898,065
743,830 Fia, 000 3,620,118 2,577,893 “ T,1E5.867
- 1,108,167 1,119,559 3533,501 - 5,755,337
. - - 4,052,748 - 4,053,746
356,050 FA24, 508 2,111,41% 731,277 b,306 4,934,700
- - 163,571 ~ - 163,571
24,740,205 20,767 972 18,261 860 23,060,744 20,501 G1,920,285

Assets available to mest sll of the labillties and 10 cover outstanding commitments include cash and balances
with central banks, Islamic financing and investing assets, other investments at fair vakie and jtems in the

course of collection.
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31 Risk management (continued)

(¢t} Liquidity risk and fundiog management (continued)

iv.  Islamic derivative maturity profile

The Bank’s [slamic derivatives will be settled on the following basis:

49

* Unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies: This mainly comprise promises to either buy or sell a
specified currency at a specific price and date in the future,

* Islamic profit rate swaps: The transactions are settled by executing the purchase or sale of commodity

under “Murabaha Sale Apreement”,

The table below analyses the Bank’s Islamic derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a net
basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the consolidated financial position
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual gross cash flows.

Less than 3 3 months to tto 5 Over 5
On demand ntonths i year years years Tatal
AED000 AED'0)0 AL 000 AED000 AED0MH) AED'GOD
2013
Unilateral promise to
buy/sell currencies - 5,343,890 4,360,833 - - 9,704,723
Islamic profit rate
swaps - - - 4,714,778 665,000 5374778
- 5,343,890 4,360,583 4,714,778 665,000 15,084,501
2012 (Restated)
Uniksteral promise to
buy/sell currencies . 4,656,381 7,362 266 - - 12,018,647
Istamic profit rate
SWaps - - . 4,825,176 300,000 3,123,178
- 4,656,381 7,362,266 4,823,176 300,000 17,141,823

v.  Contingent liabilities and commitments

The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank's contingent Habilities and

commitments
2013
On Less than 3 months Tto5 Over 5
demand 3 months to 1 year years years Total
AED’000 AEDR000 AED'000 AED00D AED’060 AED 000
Contingent liabilities:
« Letters of guarantee - 138,280 1,609,837 3,048,051 2,196,034 6,986,202
- Letters of credit - 1,141,222 1,673,715 483,181 14,926 3,313,044
- 1,279,502 3,283,582 3,531,232 2,204,960 10,299,246
Capital expenditure
coimmitments - 3,598 - 904,007 - 203,605
Taotal “ 3,283,582 2,204,268 11,202,851

1,283,100

4,431,239

SR e e

L T S T et e
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51 Risk management {continued)
{¢) Eiquidity risk and funding management (continued)
v.  Contingent liabilities and commitments (continued)
2012 (Restated)
On Less than 3 months Tt Orver 8

dernand 3 months to I vear YEUrs Years Toral
AEDY000 AED00 AEDG00 AED00O0 AED 000 AED'000

Contingent liabifities:

- Letters of guarantee - 3,2 05363 1,528,333 787,732 1,718 7,828,148
- Letters of credit - 1,563 847 397,861 587 - 1,962,295
- 7074212 5,526,194 788319 1,718 9,790,443

Capital expenditure
commitments - - 12,135 1,070,678 - (082,813
Total - 7,074,212 1,038,329 1,858,997 1,718 10,873,236

{d) Market risk

Market risk arises from changes in market rates such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices, as well as in their correlation and implied volatilities, Market risk management is designed to
limit the amount of potential losses on open positions which may arise due to unforeseen changes in profit
rates, foreign exchange rates or equity prices. The Bank is exposed to diverse financial instruments
including securities, foreign currencies, equities and commodities.

The Bank pays considerable attention to market risk. The Bank uses appropriate models, as per standard
market practice, for the valuation of its positions and receives regular market information in order to
regulare market risk.

The trading market risk framework comprises the following elements:

= Limits to ensure that risk-takers do not excecd aggregate risk and concentration parameters set by
senior management; and

® Independent mark-to-market valuation, reconciliation of positions and tracking of stop-losses for
trading positions on a timely basis,

The policies and procedures and the trading limits are set to ensure the implementation of the Bank’s
market risk policy in day-to-day operations. These are reviewed periodically to ensure they remain in line
with the Bank’s general market risk policy. The Chief Risk Officer of the Bank ensures that the market
risk management process is always adequately and appropriately staffed. In addition to its internal
procedures and systems, the Bank is required to comply with the guidelines and regutations of the Central
Bank of the 1J AE.
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51 Risk management (continued)
(d) Murket risk (continued)
i Profit margin risk

The Bank is not significantly exposed to risk in terms of repricing of its customer deposits since, in
accardance with Islamic Sharia’a, the Bank does not provide contractual rates of return to its depositors or
investment account holders. The return payable to depositors and investment account holders is based on
the prineciple of the Mudaraba by which the depositors and fnvestment account holders agree to share the
profit or loss made by the Bank’s Mudaraba asset pool over a given period.

1. Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect future profitability or the
fair values of financial instruments, The Bank is exposed to profit rate risk as a result of mismatches or
gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and off-halance sheet instruments that mature or re-price in a
given period. The Bank manages this risk through risk management strategies.

The effective profit rate {effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used in
a present value calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate
for a fixed rate instrument carried at amortised cost and a current rate for a floating rate instrument or an
instrument carried at fair value.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity (0 a reasonable possible change in profit rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Bank’s consolidated income statement.

The sensitivity of the consolidated income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in profit rates on
the net income for one year, based on the variable profit rate non-trading financial assets and financial
ljabilities held at 31 December 2013 and 2012,

Sensitivity of Sensitivity of

profit on Islamic profit on Islamic

Inerease in financing and financing and

Currency basis points investing assets investing assets
2013 2012

AED 080 AED000

(Restated)

AED 50 49,168 48,575
UsD 50 10,283 5,850

iii.  Foreign exchange risk

The Bank has significant income recorded in its overseas subsidiaries and is therefore exposed to
movements in the foreign currency rates used to convert income into the Bank’s presentation currency,
the U AL Dirhaim.

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December
2013 and 2012, Included in the table are the Bank’s financia! instruments at their CAITYINE BmOounts,
categorised by currency.
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51  Risk management (continued)

(d) Market risk (continned)

fil. Foreign exchange risk (continned)

Sensitivity analysis - impact af fluctuation of various currencies an net income and equity

The tables below indicate the extent to which the Bank was exposed to curvency risk at 31 December
2013 and 2012 on its non-trading monetary assets and liabilities, and forecast cash flows. The analysis is
performed for a reasonable possible movement of the currency rate against the AED with all other
variables held constant on the consolidated income statement (due to the changes in the fair values of
currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities) and equity (due to the change in fair value
of foreign currency denominated available-for-sale equity instruments). A negative amount in the table
reflects a potential net reduction in consolidated income statement and equity, while a positive amount
reflects a net potential increase. The sensitivity analysis does not take account of actions by the Bank that
right be taken to mitigate the effect of such changes.

Increase in

Effect on profit

Effect on profit

currency rate before tax before tax
Currency in % 2013 2012
AED 000 AEL000
{Restated)
GBP +2 (92) 1,049
EURO +2 (1,489) (193)
Dacreasein Effect on profit  Effect on profit
currency rate before tax before tax
Currency in % 2013 2012
AED000 AED 000
(Restated)
GRP 2 92 {1,049
EURD -2 1,489 195

iv. Foreign investment

The Bank has significant income recorded in its overseas subsidiaries and is therefore exposed to
movements in the foreign currency rates used to convert income into the Bank’s presentation currency,
the U.ALE. Dirham.

The table below indicates the change in recorded profit before tax and equity had the result for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 been translated at exchange rates against the AED adjusted, with alt
other vartables held constant, by the assumed changes below. The sensitivity analyses do not take account
of actions by the Bank that might be taken to mitigate the effect of such changes.
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31

(d)

Risk management {continued)

Market risk {continued)

iv.  Foreign investment (continued)

Currency

Pak Rupees
Egypt Sterling

Currency

Pak Rupees
Euypt Sterhing

v.  Equity price risk

Increase in
CHrTency
rate i

Yo

+5
+5

Decrease in
Cl.l!'l"ﬂll{:y
rate in

o (4]

-5
-5

Fffect on
profit

before tax

2013
AED 000

(1,0035)
373

Eifect on
profit

bhefore fax

2013
ALED00

{2,277)
(338)

Effect on
eoudty
2013
AED000

(25,034)
8,406

Effect on
equity
2013
AED600

(47,316)
(7,609)

Effect on
profit
before tax
2012
AED000
{Restated)

1,025
1.075

Effect on
profit
before tax
2012
AED000
{Restated)

(156)
(254)

1035

Effect on
gquity
2012
AED 000
(Restated)

13,551
8,975

Effect on
Equity
2m2
AED000
(Restated)

(12.261)
(8.122)

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as the result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual stocks. The non-trading equity price risk exposure arises

from the Bank’s investiment portfolio.

The effect on equity (as 2 result of a change in the fair value of equity instruments held as fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) at 31 December 2013 and 2012) due to a reasonably
possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held constant, is as follows:

Market indices

Dubai Financial Market
Abu Dhabi Exchange
Bahrain Stock Ixchange
Saudi Stock Exchange
Doha Stock Exchange
Egypt Stock Exchange
QOther

Change in

market

indices

Yo

Effect on
consolidated
income
statement
2013

AED 066

Effect on
equity
2013
AED?000

18,916
5,191
3,132
3,787
2,013
1,328
1,263

Effect on
consolidated
income
sfatenment
2012
AEDO00
{(Restated)

56

Effect on
couity
202
AED’000
{Restated)

16,522
3,794
1.970
3,417
2,041

2,304
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51 Risk management {continued)

(e} Operational visk

Operational risk is the potential exposure to financial or other damage arising from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems.

The Bank has developed a detailed operational visk framework. The framework clearly defines roles and
responsibilities of individuals/units across different functions of the Bank that are involved in performing
various operational risk management tasks, Operational Risk Management Framework will ensure that
operational risks within the Bank are properly identified, monitored, managed and reported. Key elements
of the framework include process mapping, setting up loss data base, setting up of KR1s, risk analysis and
risk management reporting.

The Bank is currently using operational risk tracking system, i.c. ORMIS to track operational risk events
across the Bank. The system houses three years of operational loss dats. The subject system is currently
enhanced to automate KL RCEA and scenario based frand risk selfassessment modules,

Each new product introduced is subject to a risk review and signoff process where all relevant risks are
identified and assessed by departments independent of the risk-taking unit proposing the product.
Variations of existing products are also subject io a similar process. Business and support units are
responsible for managing operations risk in their respective functional areas. They operate within the
Bank’s operational risk management framework and ensure that risk is being managed within their
respective business units, The day-to-day management of operations risk is through the maintenance of a
comprehensive system of internal controls, supported by robust systems and procedure to monitor
transaction positions and documentation, as well as maintenance of key backup procedures and business
contingency planning,

42  Capital management
(a) Capital management objective
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity” on the face of

consolidated financial position are:

= To comply with the capital requirements set by the Central Bank of UAE,

»  To safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern and increase the returns for the
sharehalders; and

v To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

{b) Regulatory capital

The Bank’s lead regulator the Central Bank of ULA.E. sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank
as a whole. The Bank and individual banking operations within the Bank are directly supervised by their
respective local regulators.
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52 Capital management (continued)

(b}  Reguolatory eapital (continued)
The Bank’s regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:

»  Tier 1 capital, which includes share capital, Tier | sukuk, statutory reserves, donated land reserve,
general reserve, retained earnings, exchange translation reserve and non-controlling interests, and
other regulatory adjustments relating to items that are included in equity but are treated differently for
capital adequacy calculation purposes.

»  Tier 2 capital, which inchides qualifying subordinated liabilities (i.e. Medium term wakala finance),
coliective impairment allowance and tnvestment fair value reserve relating to unrealised gain/loss on
equity instruments measured as FVTOCL

Various limits are applied to elements of the capital base:

v Tier 2 capital cannot exceed 67% of'tier 1 capital;

o Tier | capital nrust be a minimum of 7% of risk weighted assets; and

a  Qualifying subordinated labilities capital cannot exceed 50% of tier | capital,

The Bank’s assets are risk weighted as to their relative credit, market, and operational risk. Credit risk
includes both on and off-balance sheet risks. Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on and off-
balance sheet positions arising from movements in market prices and includes profit rate risk, foreign
exchange risk, equity exposure risk, and commodity risk. Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss
resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events,

The Bank is following the standardised approach for credit, market and operational risk, as permitted by
the UL AE. Central Bank and as per Pillar | of Basel 2.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored on a regular basis by the Bank's
management, employing technigues based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and the
Central Bank of United Arab Emirates. The required information is filed with the regulators on a monthly
or/and quarterly basis. During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank complied in full
with all its externally imposed capital requirements.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, all banks operating in the U.A.E. are required to
maintain a capital adequacy ratio at 2%,

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous year, However,
they are under constant review by the managenient.
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52

{¢)

Capital management (continned)

Capital adequacy ratio (“CAR™)

108

Basel 2 and the UL A E. Central Bank requirements are followed in caleulating the following ratios:

Fier | Capital

Share capital

Tier | sukuk

Other reserves

Retained earnings
Mon-controiling interest

Less:
Treasury shares
Cumulative defmred exchange losses

Toizal Tier 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capita!

Investment fair value reserve
Collective impairment allowance

Madium term wakala finanes

Total Tier 2 Capital

Deductions from capital

Total capital base

Risk welghted assets
Credit risk

Market risk
Operational risk

Tota) risk weighted assets

Capital Ratias
Totaf regulatory capital expressed as a

percentage of total risk weighted assets

(Meapital adeqoacy ratio”)

Tier 1 capital to total risk weighted assets

after deductions for associates

2013 2012
AED 000 AED000
{Restated)
3,953,751 3,797,054
3,673,000 -
5,508,795 5,348,964
1,627,396 723,192
317,373 263,971
14,480,315 10,837,181
(13,099) -
(280,833%) (197,192)
14,186,383 10,639,959
(563,850) (820,130
242,348 696,179
- 3,002,034
338,498 2,878,083
(570,260) (477.491)
3954621 13,040,581
70,199,816 69,353,608
1,804,656 1,910,767
4,526,311 3,840,839
76,530,777 731058214
18.2% 17.4%
18.2% 13.9%
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43 Comparative anounts

109

The following tables summarize the impact of the adoption of the TFRS 10, IFRS 1} and others
adjustments on the comparative balances (f.e. 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2012), results
{i.e. 31 December 2012) and cash flows (.. 31 December 2012):;

Consolidated statement of financial position;

ABSETS

Cash and batances with central
Banks

Prie from banks and finaneial
Institutions

tslamic financing and investing
assets, net

Investments in [slamic sukuk
measured at amortised cost

Other investiments at fair value

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

Properties held for sale

Investment properties

Receivables and other assety

Property, plant and equiprment

Total sssets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Customers’ deposits

Duse 1o banks and financial
institutions

Sukuk financing instruments

Medium term wakalat finance

Payables and other Habilities

Zakat payable

Tatal Habilities

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the Parent

Non-controliing interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

és at 31 December 2012

As previously IFRS 10 IFRS 11 Others

reparied adjustments  adjustments {note 1&) Ay restated
AED 000 AR 000 AED 009 ALED 000 AED'000
15,473,549 526 (76) - 15473999
3,169,114 123,945 . - 3,293,059
55,560,103 (377,73%) 324 - 55,182,688
11,088,662 . . - 11,088,662
2,144,871 20,517 {1,091) (183,265) 1,981,832
2,294,028 (548,342) F0,002 183,245 2,029,953
224,909 1,820,278 (47,813) - 1,997,374
1,931,808 213916 (64,714) - 2,083,010
2,920,298 1,990,369 (18,70%) - 4,891,958
357,337 35,550 {3.430) - 580,477
95,364,699 3,281,020 {(34,507) - 611,212
66,800,852 {79,287) 3,958 « 66,715,523
6,158,28% 509,711 - - 6,668,000
4,673,960 . - - 4,673,960
3,732,543 . - - 3,752,543
3,255,628 1,717,557 {38,465) - 4,934,700
163,572 - - - 63,572
84,804,844 2,147,961 {34,507y - 86018298
9,588,562 (300,781) - - 9,087,781
971,293 1,633,840 . - 2,605,133
10,559,853 1,133,039 - 11,692,914
93,364,699 3,281,020 (34,507) - 98,611,212
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued}

53  Comparative amounts (continued)

Consolidated statement of financial posjtion:

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks

Pue from banks and Goancial institutions

tstamic financing and investing, assets, net

Investiments in Islamic sukuk measured at
arnottised cost

Other mvestments st fair value

Investments in associaies and joint ventures

Properties held for sale

Investment properties

Receivables and other assets

Property, plant and equipment

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Customers” deposits

Tiue to banks and finaneial institutions
Sukuk financing instruments

Medium term wakalat finance
Payables and other liabilities

Zakat payable

‘Fotal liabilities

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As af | Janeary 2012

110

As previously IFRS 10 IFRs 11

reporied adjustments  adjustments As restated
AEDR'000 ALRD 000 AEDR00 AED’600
12,952,319 437 (7 12,052 679
3,043,096 108,563 - 3,132,059
51,507,049 {390,000} 569 51L,117.618
12,688,111 . - 12,688,111
2,034,389 19,307 {763) 2,083,133
2,336,439 (1,242,629) 105,118 1,198,928
609,736 1,996,707 (47,808} 2,558,635
1,783,203 202,431 (69,127) 1,918,529
3,030,6%0 2,633,139 (17.961) 3,685,868
381,410 41,662 (3,952) 619,120
00,588,464 3,390,237 (34,001) 93,944,700
64,929 839 (166,772) 8,331 64,771,398
4,032,433 323,548 - 4,577,981
4,173,983 . - 4,173,983
3,732,543 . - 3,732,543
3,384,833 1,922,880 (42,332) 3,265,381
121,076 - - 121,078
80,414,707 2,281,656 {34,000} 82,662,362
9,135,433 {500,781) - 8,634,654
1,038,322 1,609,362 - 2,647,684
10,173,757 1,108,581 - 11,282,338
2,388,464 3,390,237 (34,001) 93,944,700

e A
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Notes to the consolidated financixl statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

53  Comparative amounis (continued)

nsolidated income statement:

It

INCOME

Income from Islamic financing snd investing assety

income from investments i [slamic subuk

Ieome from International murabahat and wakala,
short torm

Ciain from other Investments at falr value. net

Commissions, lecs and Toreign exchange income

Income from brvestment propeities

Tneesmre from properties Held for sale. net

Cither income

Total income

EXPENSES

Personnel expenses

General and sdministrative expensey
Pepreciation of property, plant end equipment
Deprecintion of investment propertics
Impairment loss on finsncial sssets, net
Inpairment logs on non-financial asseis. net

Total expensey

Opernting profit before depositors’ and
sukuk holders' share of profit, share of profit
fromt associates and joint venture s and facome
tax

Pepositors” and sukuk bolders share of profit

Operating profit for the year

Share of profit from associstes and Joim ventures

Profit for the year befare income tax
Ficerme Ly experse
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the Parant

Non-cordrolHag interests

Profit far the period

For the vear snded 31 December 2012

11

As previously IFRS 10 IFRS 11
veparied Acdjustments adjustments As restated
AER000 AEL DG AED00 ALD'000
3,286,436 (200401 " 3,260,396
621,465 . - 621,463
55,359 2,798 - 38,157
3018 {37.038) 3 22,483
T33,363 46,679 (3 7E0,014
08,209 17,230 {25,144} 090,203
R e 302,269 - 217,392
156,440 24,172 {5,807} P74, 514
3,026,324 236,030 {31,338) 5,231,016
(514,837} (58,235} 4,809 {966,263)
{(476.953) {31231} 9,748 (518.436)
LI {4.400) 4,413 {31,338}
{99,196} {3,931) 1,204 {101,835)
{972,633) - - (972,633}
(70,495} (50, 129) u (120.624)
{2.563,465) {169,928) 22264 (2,713,129}
2,460,839 66,123 {9,094} 2,517,887
(1,316,205} {536,294) . (1,352.499)
144,654 29,828 (9,094) 1,163,388
60,301 (8,238} 9.094 60.857
1,204,953 21,290 . 1,226,243
{12,801} - - {12,801)
L192, 154 21,290 - 1,213,444
L1072 - - 1,430,072
42,082 21290 . 63,372
1,192,154 21,260 s LI13,444
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

53 Comparative amounts (continued)

Consolidated statement of cash flows:

For the vear ended 3t December 2012

TAS previously IFRS 10 IFRS 11
reported  Adjustments  adjustments A5 restated
AEDG00 AED'000 AED*060 AEDO00
Net cash flows from operating activities {421,857 (102,472 {771 (525,100
Mot cash flows from investing activities 1,324,953 148,549 771 1,674,273
Net ¢ash flows from financing activities {127,199) 3,378 - (123.821)
Net cash flows 975,897 44,455 . 1,025,352

54 Approval of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue
on 2% Januvary 2014,



